
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for August 28, 2014 
7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 
 
 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

 
II. Previous Minutes 

Approval of Minutes of the July 24, 2014, Regular Council Meeting ............................................1 
 
III. Persons to Be Heard 

a. Proclamation: Recognizing Kodiak’s Seafood Processing Workers .................................10 
b. Proclamation: Suicide Prevention Week ...........................................................................12 
c. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 
IV. Unfinished Business 

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1320, Authorizing a Lease of 
Property Adjacent to Pier II With Petro Star, Inc. d/b/a North Pacific Fuel ......................16 

b. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance, No. 1321, Authorizing the Grant to 
Kodiak Electric Association, Inc, of an Approximately 5,000 Square Foot Easement on a 
Portion of Alaska State Land Survey No. 89-10, USS 2539 TR A Located in the Vicinity 
of Gibson Cove; and a 40-Foot Wide by Approximately 4,997 Foot-Long Easement 
Traversing Pillar Mountain Across City Properties Described as USS 2538a TR B and 
USS 3945; for a Flywheel System and Power Line to Support the Operation of a New 
Crane at Pier III ..................................................................................................................26 

c. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1322, Enacting Kodiak City Code 
2.08.065, Assistant Deputy City Manager—Appointment, Powers and Duties; Amending 
Chapters 2, 4 and 10 of the City Personnel Rules and Regulations; Amending the 
Definitions in the City Personnel Rules and Regulations; and Adopting New Schedules I 
And II to the Personnel Rules and Regulations; to Provide for the Appointment, Duties, 
and Compensation of an Assistant Deputy City Manager .................................................48 

 
V. New Business 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1323, Authorizing a Lease Renewal of a Communication 
Site in U.S. Survey 3945 on Pillar Mountain to (CCATT, LLC) (Pillar No. 11) ..............62 

b. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1324, Amending Kodiak City Code 2.08.025, 
Compensation of Councilmembers, and Kodiak City Code 2.08.034, Compensation Of 
Mayor, to Increase Monthly Compensation for Councilmembers From $200 to $400, and 
to Increase Monthly Compensation for the Mayor From $250 to $500. ...........................76 

c. First Reading, Ordinance, No. 1325, Authorizing an Amendment to the Lease Between 
the City of Kodiak and NOAA for Office and Warehouse Space on Pier II .....................84 

d. Resolution No. 2014–30, Authorizing and Directing the Chief of Police to Place Signs 
Prohibiting Parking on the Northwest Side of Mission Road Between Erskine Avenue 
and 12th Avenue .................................................................................................................94 

e. Resolution No. 2014–31, Appointing Members to the Kodiak Fisheries Development 
Association .......................................................................................................................102 

f. Resolution No. 2014–32, Opposing Section 1021 of the 2012 National Defense 
Authorization Act.............................................................................................................110 



g. Authorization of a Technical Services Contract With Willard A. Feda to Operate the 
Marine Travelift ...............................................................................................................148 

h. Authorization of a Professional Services Contract for Survey of Aleutian Homes Phase 
VI, Project No. 15-03/7037 ..............................................................................................158 

i. Authorization of a Professional Services Contract for Design of Aleutian Homes Phase 
VI, Project No. 15-03/7037 ..............................................................................................164 

j. Authorization of a Trident Basin Fuel Facility and Pipeline Easement Agreement With 
Redemption, Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service ........................................................178 

k. Authorization to Purchase Vehicle for Kodiak Police Department .................................188 
 
VI. Staff Reports 

a. City Manager 
b. City Clerk 

 
VII. Mayor’s Comments 
 

VIII. Council Comments 
 
IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 
 

X. Adjournment 
 



  7846 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
HELD THURSDAY, JULY 24, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 
 
 
I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Charles E. Da-
vidson, Terry J. Haines, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were present and constituted a 
quorum. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop and Gabriel T. Saravia were absent. City Manager 
Aimée Kniaziowski, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson 
were also present. 
 
After the Pledge of Allegiance, Salvation Army Sergeant Major Dave Blacketer gave the invoca-
tion. 
 

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the June 12, 2014, regular meeting 
as presented. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD 
 

a. Public Comments 
 

Jamie Fagan thanked the Council for scheduling the PANDA’s presentation against the Nation-
al Defense Authorization Act (NDAA). He gave an update on the number of towns that have 
passed resolutions against the NDAA and stated that the members of the group are funding their 
own advertising. 
 
Betty MacTavish said sections 10-21 and 10-22 in the NDAA concern her, and she asked the 
Council to review those sections. She thanked the Council for inviting PANDA to present on 
Tuesday. She said the increase in City sales tax concerns her, and she spoke against the Assistant 
City Manager position. She informed the public that Relay for Life was occurring during the 
weekend. 
 
Susan Brockman and Beverly Cole from Senior Citizens of Kodiak performed a song sharing 
the benefits of the Senior Center services. 
 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None  
 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1



 JULY 24, 2014 7847 
 

a. First Reading, Ordinance 1320, Authorizing a Lease of Property Adjacent to Pier II 
With Petro Star, Inc., D/B/A North Pacific Fuel  

 
Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1320 by title. This ordinance would authorize the City of 
Kodiak to lease a portion of Pier II uplands known as Van Rows 11 and 12 (easterly), to Petro 
Star Inc, D/B/A North Pacific Fuel. Petro Star has leased the parcel for five year terms continu-
ously since 1999 and desires to renew the lease for an additional five years. The current lease ex-
pires July 30, 2014.  
 
Councilmember Haines MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1320 in the first reading and advance to 
second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
b. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1321, Authorizing the Grant to Kodiak Electric Associa-

tion, Inc, of an Approximately 5,000 Square Foot Easement on a Portion of Alaska 
State Land Survey No. 89-10, USS 2539 TR A Located in the Vicinity of Gibson Cove; 
and a 40-Foot Wide by Approximately 4,997 Foot-Long Easement Traversing Pillar 
Mountain Across City Properties Described as USS 2538a TR B and USS 3945; for a 
Flywheel System and Power Line to Support the Operation of a New Crane at Pier III 

 
Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1321 by title. This ordinance recommends Council approve 
two electrical easements to KEA, which will allow them to install and maintain equipment relat-
ed to providing medium voltage power to the Pier III project. One easement is on Pillar Moun-
tain and will be used for a new 12.47 kVA power distribution line, which will serve existing 
utility customers currently on the Pier III electrical circuit. The second easement is for the two 
flywheels and is in Gibson Cove. These easements are related to the three party agreement exe-
cuted with KEA and Horizon Lines that was structured to provide medium voltage electrical ser-
vice for the new 100 gauge crane to be installed on the Pier III project. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1321 in the first reading and advance 
to second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
c. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1322, Enacting Kodiak City Code 2.08.065, Assistant City 

Manager—Appointment, Powers and Duties; Amending Chapters 2, 4 and 10 of the 
City Personnel Rules and Regulations; Amending the Definitions in the City Personnel 
Rules and Regulations; and Adopting New Schedules I and II to the Personnel Rules 
and Regulations; to Provide for the Appointment, Duties, and Compensation of an As-
sistant City Manager 

 
Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1322 by title. The City Council and City Manager have dis-
cussed ways to even out the Manager’s workload given the multiple job requirements. If passed, 
Ordinance No. 1322 would create an Assistant City Manager position, which would provide a 
transitional senior management position that can fill in for the Manager when necessary and take 

2



 JULY 24, 2014 7848 
 

on many of the operational tasks, especially human resource related functions. The Manager 
consulted with the City Attorney who advised that a portion of Title 2 of the City Code must be 
amended to identify the position and its main duties, and the Personnel Rules and Regulations 
(PR&R) must also be amended to include references to the position and new salary band and 
grade consistent with assistant city managers and the City’s new classification and pay system. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1322 in the first reading and advance 
to second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
d. Resolution No. 2014–26, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Sewer), of the Schedule of Fees, 

Charges, and Tariffs and Authorizing Implementation of a Five-Year Rate Structure 
and Repealing Resolution No. 2014–22 

 
Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–26 by title. CH2MHill has prepared several water and 
sewer rate studies for the City of Kodiak going back to 1982. In March 2014 staff requested that 
CH2MHill complete a new sewer rate structure and make recommendations if rates needed to be 
adjusted. The study showed rates needed to be increased over a five-year period to meet opera-
tional and capital improvement needs. The Council adopted Resolution No. 2014–22 at the May 
22, 2014, meeting, which amended Section 14 of the City’s Schedule of Fees, Charges and Tar-
iffs to reflect the proposed five-year, five percent per year rate increase for City sewer services. 
When the Clerk’s Office updated the fee schedule to reflect the new rates, a copy error was dis-
covered. The sewer rate for apartments outside the City was inadvertently omitted from Resolu-
tion No. 2014–22. Resolution No. 2014–26 corrects this omission.  
 
Councilmember Haines MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–26. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
e. Resolution No. 2014–27, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the Filipino American 

Association of Kodiak for the Use of Public Property to Host Its Philippine Consulate 
Outreach Program  

 
Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–27 by title. The Filipino-American Association of 
Kodiak has requested use of the Teen Center on August 1-2, 2014, to host the consular outreach 
program during the visit of the Philippine Consulate General from San Francisco. The purpose of 
the visit is to provide consular outreach services to Filipino Americans in Kodiak. The Philippine 
Consulate will collect fees for services rendered, and the Filipino-American Association will also 
ask for donations from participants to help offset costs associated with the outreach program.  
 
Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–27. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 

3



 JULY 24, 2014 7849 
 

f. Resolution No. 2014–28, Authorizing Payment of Fiscal Year 2015 Nonprofit Organiza-
tion Grants  

 
Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–28 by title. Each year the City Council authorizes 
grant payments to local nonprofit organizations. The types and levels of funding are based on the 
City Council’s nonprofit funding policy guidelines adopted by Resolution No. 2014–19. The pol-
icy resolution stipulates the total amount available for nonprofit grants in a given fiscal year is 
one percent of budgeted general fund revenues, exclusive of any fund balance appropriations. 
The amount budgeted for FY2015 for nonprofit grant payments is $168,100. This year the policy 
also grants agencies the ability to apply for one-time only non-operational funds for special pro-
jects. The City received twenty-one applications for FY2015 from nonprofit organizations that 
serve Kodiak, up from seventeen applications last fiscal year, for a total amount requested of 
$173,334. Council reviewed the applications at the July 22 work session, and their support for 
the applicants is reflected in Resolution No. 2014–28. 
 
Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–28. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
g. Resolution No. 2014–29, Authorizing the Kodiak Football League to Collect Admission 

Fees for High School Football and Youth League Football Games at Baranof Park 
 
Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–29 by title. For the past several years the City Council 
has authorized the non-profit Kodiak Football League to charge admission fees for youth and 
high school football games at Baranof Park. This effort helps pay for the teams’ expenses. Be-
cause the games are held on City property, the League must receive permission from the City 
Council. Resolution No. 2014–29 will authorize the League to collect fees during the football 
season from August 1 through October 31, 2014.  
 
Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–29. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
h. Authorization of Bid Award for Annual Sidewalk, Curb, and Gutter Repairs, Project 

No. 5003/15-01 
 
Annually, the City issues bids for the repair and replacement of damaged sections of sidewalk, 
curb, and gutters at various locations throughout the City. Actual quantities of each bid item will 
vary in response to need and approval in the FY2015 budget. Bids were issued in June 11 and 
opened on July 11, 2014. Two bids were received. Staff recommends Council authorize the bid 
award to DRW Construction, the low bidder, in the amount of $53,600. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize the bid award for the annual sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter repairs project to DRW Construction in the amount of $53,600, with funds coming from 
the Street Improvement Capital Fund, Annual Sidewalk Curb and Gutter Project, Project No. 

4



 JULY 24, 2014 7850 
 

5003/15-01 and authorize the City Manager to execute the award documents on behalf of the 
City. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
i.  Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Kodiak Police Department Boiler 

Repair 
 
In January of 2012 shortly after the warranty period expired, leaks were detected in the Kodiak 
Police Department boiler system. Within a period of six weeks, the impeller seals in the boiler 
pumps began to fail. John’s Heating Service was brought in to do immediate repairs and help 
identify the problem. John’s Heating Service found the leaks and failures resulted from contami-
nated glycol, which is the product used in the system to prevent freezing of the lines and facili-
tate heating and cooling. Due to continued contamination of the glycol system and the cost of 
ongoing maintenance, the recommendation is to convert the glycol system to water. The cost of 
the system repair was included in the FY2015 budget, and staff recommends a contract for need-
ed repairs be awarded to John’s Heating Service without a competitive bid process, per KCC 
3.12.070(a)(2). 
 
Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize a professional services contract to John’s Heating 
Service in an amount not to exceed $94,000, with funds coming from the General Fund, Police 
Department, Administration repair and maintenance line item, and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the documents on behalf of the City. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
j.  Authorization of Memorandum of Understanding to Establish the Safe Streets Task 

Force 
 

The Kodiak Police Department collaborating with the FBI to create the Kodiak Safe Streets Task 
Force (KSSTF) would allow select officers to become deputized Task Force Officers (TFOs). 
The KSSTF would be able to work outside the City limits to begin investigations in import areas 
of known heavy drug trafficking to Kodiak Island.  

 
Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize the Memorandum of Understanding between the 
City of Kodiak and the Federal Bureau of Investigation to create the Kodiak Safe Streets Task 
Force and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement for the City.  

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
k.  Authorization of Borrow Material Permit No. 14-1 for B&R Fish By-Products, Inc., for 

the Breakwater Quarry 
 

5



 JULY 24, 2014 7851 
 

The City’s borrow permit with B&R Fish By-Products for rock extraction at the Breakwater 
Quarry site expired. The new permit has been reviewed by the City Attorney and insurance com-
pany and was revised to reflect current legal and insurance requirements.  

 
Councilmember Haines MOVED to approve Borrow Material Permit No. 14-1 to B&R Fish By-
Products, Inc. for the Breakwater Quarry for a five-year period commencing in July 2014 and au-
thorize the City Manager to sign the permit for the City. 
  
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
l.  Authorization of Borrow Material Permit No. 14-2 to Brechan Enterprises, Inc., for the 

Breakwater Quarry 
 
The City’s borrow permit with Brechan Enterprises Inc. for rock extraction at the Breakwater 
Quarry site expired. The new permit has been reviewed by the City Attorney and insurance com-
pany and revised to reflect current legal and insurance requirements. 

 
Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve Borrow Material Permit No. 14-2 to Brechan En-
terprises, Inc. for the Breakwater Quarry for period of five years commencing in July 2014 and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the permit for the City. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
m.  Authorization of FY2015 Pavement Repairs, Project No. 15-02/5025 
 
This project will repair areas of asphalt damaged by wear and water erosion. Brechan Enterpris-
es, Inc. is the only asphalt pavement producer and large paver in Kodiak. Staff recommended the 
Council authorize the FY2015 pavement repairs project to Brechan as a sole source contract.  
 
Councilmember Haines MOVED to authorize the award of the FY2015 Pavement Repair, Pro-
ject No. 15-02/5025 to Brechan Enterprises Inc. as a sole source contract for the total amount of 
$430,000, with funds coming from the Streets Capital Improvement Fund Project No. 5025, 
Pavement Repairs and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the 
City. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 
VI. STAFF REPORTS 

 
a. City Manager 
 
Manager Kniaziowski gave an update on capital projects. She said material will be moved to Pier 
III and the composting plan is 95 percent complete. She shared a public meeting will be sched-
uled with Sara Barton to provide facts to the public about composting. She indicated the Aleutian 
Homes Phase V, Segment B project is progressing, and the storm drains will be next. She stated 

6



 JULY 24, 2014 7852 
 

there will be an Aleutian Homes Phase VI project beginning, which will be the design piece. She 
said the Monashka Pumphouse project is underway. She provided an update that the City Engi-
neer is working on the skate park, and the bid process should occur in late September. She said 
that the City has over $50 million in active projects. Manager Kniaziowski gave an update on 
City personnel matters and highlighted Sexual Harassment training was provided for all staff and 
Reasonable Suspicion for Drugs and Alcohol training was provided for supervisors. She shared 
that the Safety Committee is working to update the safety manual. She thanked the Council for 
attending the emergency preparedness training for elected officials in June. She stated that De-
partment Heads have reviewed the Downtown Revitalization Committee recommendations and 
provided feedback that she will summarize and present to the Council in August. She stated the 
new fire truck was outside and available for viewing after the meeting. Manager Kniaziowski 
said she will attend the Alaska Municipal League meeting in Nome in August. 
 
b. City Clerk 
 
City Clerk Marlar informed the public that nominating petitions for two Councilmember seats 
are available, and the petitions will be accepted in Clerk’s Office from August 1 until August 15. 
She provided an update of the next scheduled Council work session and regular meeting. 
 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Branson said there is $50 million of capital projects occurring at this time, which are im-
proving the City’s infrastructure. She said she is excited that the Pier III and Monashka 
Pumphouse projects are underway, and she thanked the legislature for their support. She thanked 
the Council for supporting the nonprofit grants and allocating funds. She is pleased the 
Phillippine Consulate is coming to Kodiak this summer. She explained that the Downtown Revi-
talization Committee gave recommendations to the City staff and the staff is working on the rec-
ommendations to bring back to the Council for review and approval. She shared that Relay for 
Life was scheduled for the upcoming weekend and voiced support of the worthy event. 
 

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Councilmember Whiddon thanked Chief Wallace for her work to establish the Safe Streets Task 
Force. He stated the visit from Eileen Sobeck, NMFS Administrator, during the Fisheries Work 
Group meeting was very productive, and she listened to elected officials and stakeholder com-
ments during her visit.  
 
Councilmember Davidson commented the community lost a valuable member with the passing 
of Iver Malutin. 
 
Councilmember Haines said that Iver Malutin was unique and was thankful for the contributions 
he made to the community. He thanked the PANDA group for their presentation and attending 
the meeting. He thanked Mayor Branson and Betty MacTavish for reminding the community that 
Relay for Life was occurring during the weekend. He opined the Aleutian Homes Phase V pro-
ject is a benefit to the City-wide infrastructure, and he commented on the large pipe that supplies 
water to the community. He said he appreciated Eileen Sobeck’s time during the Fisheries Work 
Group meeting.  
 

7



 JULY 24, 2014 7853 
 

Councilmember Walker thanked the PANDA group and he commented on the Patriot Act. 
 

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 
None 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Coun-
cilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 
 

 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 
Minutes Approved:  

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

9



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item III. a. Memo Page 1 of 1 
 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: August 28, 2014 

Agenda Item: III. a. Proclamation: Recognizing Kodiak’s Seafood Processing Workers 

 
SUMMARY: This proclamation recognizes the hard work of seafood processing workers and the 
positive contribution they make to the community. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Attachment A: Proclamation: Recognizing Kodiak’s Seafood Processing Workers 

 
 

 
 
 
  

10



PROCLAMATION 
 

RECOGNIZING KODIAK’S 
SEAFOOD PROCESSING WORKERS 

 
WHEREAS, the commercial fishing industry is the backbone of the 

Kodiak economy; and 
 

WHEREAS, Kodiak is among the top fishing ports in the nation; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, approximately 437 million pounds of seafood crossed 
Kodiak’s docks in 2013, with an ex-vessel dollar value that exceeded $309 
million as reported by the Alaska Department of Fish and Game; and 

 
WHEREAS, approximately one fifth of Kodiak’s workforce is 

employed in the seafood processing sector; and 
 

WHEREAS, Kodiak Island seafood processing workers handled the 
437 million pounds of the seafood harvested, as well as a significant 
amount of sport/recreational-caught seafood; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak acknowledges the monumental 
contribution of its seafood processing workers. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pat Branson, Mayor of the City of Kodiak, 
do hereby proclaim August 28, 2014, as 

 

Seafood Processing Workers Day 
 
in Kodiak and urge all citizens to acknowledge the extraordinary efforts 
and dedication of Kodiak’s seafood workers. 
 
 Dated this 28th day of August 2014. 
        City of Kodiak 
 
         
        Pat Branson, Mayor 

11

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item III. b. Memo Page 1 of 1 
 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: August 28, 2014 

Agenda Item: III. b. Proclamation: Suicide Prevention Week  

 
SUMMARY: This proclamation recognizes suicide as a significant public problem in Kodiak and 
declares suicide prevention a priority. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Attachment A: Proclamation: Suicide Prevention Week 

 
 

 
 
 
  

12



PROCLAMATION 
Declaring Suicide Prevention Week 

 
 

WHEREAS, in the United States, one person dies by suicide every 13.3 minutes, 
with 39,518 deaths by suicide in our country during 2011; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2011, 143 Alaskans died by suicide, and several thousand friends 
and family members were changed forever by loving those people; and 
 

WHEREAS many of those people who died never received effective behavioral 
health services; and 

 
WHEREAS, supporting the development of accessible behavioral health services 

implementing national best practices in reducing suicide risk for people of all ages and 
backgrounds; and 
 

WHEREAS, encouraging initiatives based on the goals and activities contain in 
the National Strategy for Suicide Prevention, Zero Suicide of the National Action 
Alliance for Suicide Prevention, and The Way Forward by the Action Alliances suicide 
attempt survivor task force; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Alaska Suicide Prevention Council is dedicated to reducing the 
frequency of suicide attempts and deaths, and the pain for those affected by suicide 
deaths, through research projects, educational programs, intervention services, and 
bereavement services. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Pat Branson, Mayor of the City of Kodiak, do hereby 
proclaim September 8 through 14, 2014 as  

 

 SUICIDE PREVENTION WEEK 

 
in Kodiak, and call upon all citizens to recognize suicide as a significant public problem 
in Kodiak and declare suicide prevention a priority. 
 

Dated this 28th day of August 2014. 

 
City of Kodiak 

  
         
        Pat Branson, Mayor 

13

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



              
(This page left intentionally blank.) 

14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

15



16



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1) Renew the lease to Petro Star for another five-year term by approving Ordinance No. 1320. Use 

of the area is beneficial to both parties and essential to Petro Star operations. This is the 
recommendation of staff.  

2) Do not renew the lease and seek other uses for the area. It is unlikely the City will find a more 
suitable tenant or use for the property; therefore, staff does not recommend this option. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: In 2013 an appraisal of the Pier II warehouse and uplands was 
conducted. The proposed rates are consistent with the appraisers recommended rates and fair market 
value. Petro Star has agreed to lease the 8,300 sf parcel at the current rate plus a 2.5 percent increase 
each year of the contract. The total revenue for the lease term is $64,484.75. The annual rate is: 

August 1, 2014 to July 31, 2015 $12,268.02 
August 1, 2015 to July 31, 2016 $12,574.72 
August 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 $12,889.09  
August 1, 2017 to July 31, 2018 $13,211.32  
August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019 $13,541.60  

 
LEGAL: The City attorney and insurance broker reviewed all documents for compliance. The attorney 
also prepared the ordinance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve the lease as negotiated with Petro 
Star, Inc. for a five-year term commencing on August 1, 2014, and ending on July 31, 2019, by adopting 
Ordinance No. 1320 in the second reading.  
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The Harbormaster discussed the renewal of the lease with Petro 
Star and negotiated the terms of the agreement. The lease benefits Petro Star and the Harbor Department 
and provides revenues to the City. I support Lon White’s recommendation and ask Council to adopt 
Ordinance No. 1320 in the second reading following a public hearing. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1320 
 Attachment B: Five-year lease between City and Petro Star  
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to adopt Ordinance No.1320. 

17



Ordinance 1320 
Lease Between City of Kodiak and Petro Star, Inc.  August 1, 2014-July 31, 2019 
Contract No. 216262 
  

CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1320  

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-
ING A LEASE OF PROPERTY ADJACENT TO PIER II WITH PETRO STAR, INC. 
d/b/a NORTH PACIFIC FUEL 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak (“City”) the City is the owner of certain land adjacent to 
Pier II, more particularly described as the easterly 8,300 square feet of Van Storage Rows 11 and 
12, combined (“Premises”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Petro Star, Inc. d/b/a North Pacific Fuel desires to renew its existing lease of 
the Premises for purposes that are directly related to its use of the Pier II port facilities, for a term 
expiring July 31, 2019.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1: The Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City of Kodiak to renew the 

Ground Lease Agreement with Petro Star, Inc. d/b/a North Pacific Fuel, for the use of 
8,300 square feet of space in the area adjacent to Pier II. Notwithstanding any provi-
sion of Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20 to the contrary, the renewal of such Ground 
Lease Agreement hereby is authorized. 

 
Section 2: The form and content of the Ground Lease Agreement between the City and Petro 

Star, Inc. d/b/a North Pacific Fuel, hereby are in all respects authorized, approved, 
and confirmed; and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered, and directed 
to execute and deliver the Ground Lease Agreement to Petro Star, Inc., d/b/a North 
Pacific Fuel, on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before 
this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions, and deletions therein as 
she shall deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute 
conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, modifications, additions, or 
deletions therein from the form and content of said document now before this meet-
ing, and from and after the execution and delivery of said document, the City Manag-
er hereby is authorized, empowered, and directed to do all acts and things and to 
execute all documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provi-
sions of the Ground Lease Agreement as executed. 

 
Section 2: The Ground Lease Agreement authorized by this ordinance is subject to the require-

ments of City Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions 
with signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication 
of this ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions 
are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal 
and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at an election by a majority of the qual-
ified voters voting on the question. If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, 
this ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage and publication. 

  

18

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance 1320 
Lease Between City of Kodiak and Petro Star, Inc.  August 1, 2014-July 31, 2019 
Contract No. 216262 
  

 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY CLERK 
 
First Reading: July 24, 2014   
Second Reading:    
Effective Date:     

19



 
Petro Star, Inc.  Page 1 of 5 
Pier II Van Storage Rows 
Contract No. 216262, Attachment to Ord. 1320 

GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 
PETRO STAR AND CITY OF KODIAK 

FOR A PORTION OF VAN STORAGE ROWS ADJACENT TO PIER 2 
CONTRACT NO. 216262 

 
THIS LEASE, made as of the 1st day of August 2014, by and between the City of Kodiak, an 
Alaska municipal corporation ("City"), and Petro Star, Inc., an Alaska corporation, d/b/a North 
Pacific Fuel ("Lessee"), provides as follows: 
 
1. Leased Premises. Upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and subject to the 
prompt payment and performance by Lessee of each and every sum and other obligation herein, 
the City does hereby lease, let, and demise to the Lessee, and the Lessee does hereby lease from 
the City the following described premises: that portion of Van Storage Rows 11 and 12, near Pier 
II in Kodiak, Alaska, extending seventy-five feet from the easterly end of those rows along the 
curbs defining the rows, and terminating at a line drawn between the curbs at the seventy-five-
foot limit, comprising 8,300 square feet more or less, and further identified on the schematic 
drawing attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Premises”). 
 
2. Term. This Lease shall be effective from August 1, 2014, through July 31, 2019, unless 
terminated earlier as provided below. The provisions of Kodiak City Code section 18.20.350 in 
effect on the day and year first above written shall govern the Lessee's re-lease rights. 
 
3. Rental. Lessee agrees to pay as and for rent the sum of TWELVE THOUSAND TWO 
HUNDRED SIXTY EIGHT DOLLARS AND TWO CENTS ($12,268.02) per year in the first 
year, in one annual installment which is due in advance on the first day of August 2014. The 
rental amount will be increased for each subsequent year of this lease, effective with the rental 
payment due August 1 of each year, by an amount equal to 2.5% of the prior year's rental. The 
annual rentals shall be as follows: 
 

August 1, 2014 to July 31, 2015 $12,268.02 per year 

August 1, 2015 to July 31, 2016 $12,574.72 per year 

August 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 $12,889.09 per year 

August 1, 2017 to July 31, 2018 $13,211.32 per year 

August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019 $13,541.60 per year 
 
4. Conditions of Lease. The Premises shall be used solely for the following purposes: 

(a) Storage of spill response supplies and equipment 
(b) Unloading cargo container vans 
(c) Parking of company and employee vehicles 
(d) General storage 
(e) Storage of lube oils and kerosene in barrels 

 
5. Improvements. City shall have the right to make additions, alterations, or improvements 
to the Premises which will not impede Lessee's access to or use of the Premises. Lessee shall 

20

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 
Petro Star, Inc.  Page 2 of 5 
Pier II Van Storage Rows 
Contract No. 216262, Attachment to Ord. 1320 

have the right to erect or construct a suitable fence necessary for securing the property placed in 
the area leased, a bulk lube oil system, asphalt curbing, and parked cargo container vans for 
inventory storage. Any improvements constructed by Lessee shall be consistent with the limited 
use of the Premises authorized by this Lease and shall be constructed at Lessee's expense. Upon 
termination of this Lease, such improvements shall be removed by Lessee at its sole expense. 
 
6. Maintenance. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, Lessee shall at all times 
at its sole expense maintain the Premises in good repair and in a neat and orderly condition. 
Lessee shall not cause or permit any litter, debris, or refuse to be accumulated or stored upon the 
Premises and shall promptly remove all such materials without cost to City. 
 
7. Indemnity. Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold City, its officers, agents, and 
employees harmless against any and all actions, suits, proceedings, claims, loss, liens, costs, 
expense, and liability of every kind and nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, 
attorney's fees reasonably incurred for response or defense, for injury to or death of persons or 
loss of or damage to property, including property owned by the City, caused by or incurred as a 
result of Lessee's use and occupancy of the Premises under this Lease.  This provision shall not 
apply to claims, actions, damages, losses, or proceedings caused solely by the negligence of 
officers, agents, or employees of City. 
 
8. Insurance. (a) Lessee shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, and shall keep in 
full force and effect throughout the term of this Lease, the following policies of insurance: 

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance, $1,000,000 combined single limit 
per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage claims arising from all operations 
related to this Lease.  The general aggregate limit shall be $2,000,000. 

(2) Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance, $1,000,000 combined single 
limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

(3) Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability.  Worker's Compensation 
shall be statutory as required by the State of Alaska.  Employers Liability shall be 
endorsed to the following minimum limits and contain USL&H coverage endorsement, if 
applicable:  (i) bodily injury by accident--$1,000,000 each accident; and (ii) bodily injury 
by disease--$1,000,000 each employee, $1,000,000 policy limit. 

(4) A policy of public and property damage liability insurance in an amount of not 
less than $1,000,000 or the amount required for Lessee to demonstrate financial 
responsibility under 18 AAC 75.205, et seq., whichever amount is greater. Such policy 
shall include coverage for all claims, damages, fines, or penalties which may arise by 
reason of any federal, state, or local law or regulation, including but not limited to AS 
46.04, as a result of any discharge of petroleum products from Lessee's items stored on or 
other use of the Premises. The insurance coverage requirements of this subparagraph are 
intended to be in addition to the insurance and other financial responsibility requirements 
set forth in 18 AAC 75, and nothing in this Lease shall be construed as a waiver of the 
City's right to insist upon strict compliance with those requirements. 
(b) Other Insurance Provisions.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 
(1) Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability  

(i) City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insureds. The coverage shall contain no special limitation on the 

21



 
Petro Star, Inc.  Page 3 of 5 
Pier II Van Storage Rows 
Contract No. 216262, Attachment to Ord. 1320 

scope of protection afforded to City, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers. 

(ii) Lessee's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers 
shall be excess of Lessee’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

(iii) Lessee's insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against 
City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work 
performed by Lessee or any sublessee for City. 
(2) Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability. Lessee's insurer shall agree 

to waive all rights of subrogation against City, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers for losses arising from work performed by Lessee or any sublessee for City. 

(3) All Insurance. Each insurance policy required by this Lease shall be endorsed 
to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after 30 days’ prior written notice for nonpayment of 
premium or fraud on the part of Lessee, or 60 days prior written notice for any other 
reason, has been given to by the Insurer to City by certified mail, return receipt requested.  
(c) Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating 

of no less than A-: VII. 
(d) Verification of Coverage. Lessee shall furnish City with approved certificates of 

insurance and with certified copies of all endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
Section.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificates are to be on 
forms which meet industry standard.  City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies 
of all required insurance policies, at any time. 
 
9. Utility Charges and Taxes. All utility charges shall be borne and paid for by Lessee, 
together with all personal or real property taxes or assessments that may be levied against the 
Lessee by reasons of its occupancy of the Premises or its rights hereunder. 
 
10. Operation of Equipment. In installing, operating, or maintaining any equipment on the 
Premises and in its general management of the Premises, the Lessee will act in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations and so as not to cause interference with any other authorized use 
of Van Storage Rows, Pier II, and other City property. Lessee will not do, attempt, or permit any 
acts in connection with this Lease which could be construed as a violation of law. 
 
11. Condition of Premises. Lessee takes the Premises in its present condition and City shall 
have no responsibility for its condition, or for any damage suffered by Lessee or any other 
person due to such conditions. 
 
12. Assignment and Subleasing. Lessee shall not assign its rights or delegate its duties 
under this Lease, or sublease all or any part of the Premises, without the prior written consent of 
City.  
 
13. Termination, Default and Re-Entry. (a) Either party may terminate this Lease prior to 
the end of the Term by written notice delivered to the other party. Such termination shall be 

22



 
Petro Star, Inc.  Page 4 of 5 
Pier II Van Storage Rows 
Contract No. 216262, Attachment to Ord. 1320 

effective no earlier than ninety (90) days after the first day of the month immediately following 
such notice. 

(b) If Lessee fails to cure any default of the conditions of this Lease within thirty (30) 
days after written notice thereof by City, or in the event insolvency proceedings should be 
instituted by or against Lessee, then City may terminate the Lease as of such date and re-enter 
the premises and remove all property therefrom and Lessee shall remain liable for the payment 
of rental to the extent provided by law. 
 
14. Notice.  Any notice under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be given when 
delivered in person or deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid, and 
addressed to the other party at the address set forth above its signature on this Lease. The address 
to which any notice under this Lease shall be given to a party may be changed by written notice 
given by such party as above provided. 
 
15. Applicable Law. Lessee shall, at all times, in its use and occupancy of the Premises and 
in the conduct of its operations thereon, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties executed this instrument as of the day and month first 
above written. 
 
CITY OF KODIAK    PETRO STAR, INC. (DBA North Pacific Fuel) 
710 Mill Bay Road    P. O. Box 1487 
Kodiak, AK 99615    Kodiak, AK 99615 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Aimée Kniaziowski, Manager  Donald Castle, Vice President 
 
 
Attest:      Witness: 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
City Clerk 

23



 
Petro Star, Inc.  Page 5 of 5 
Pier II Van Storage Rows 
Contract No. 216262, Attachment to Ord. 1320 

EXHIBIT A 
Petro Star Lease Area 

 Pier II, Kodiak, Alaska 
 
 
 
 

 

Petro Star 
Lease Area  
8,300 s.f. 
 
Rows 
11&12 
(easterly) 

Row 12 (westerly)  
11,050  s.f. City Used Oil 

Facility 

24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

25



26



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 2 of 4 
 

 By September 1, 2014, the City will provide all necessary easements for power line and flywheel 
work on City property or rights of way and will perform all site grading work needed for the 
flywheel installation. 

 By July 1, 2015, KEA will complete the power line extension and will have acquired and 
installed the flywheels needed for the operation of the new crane. 

 By December 31, 2015, Horizon will have placed the crane in operation. 
 
These easements fulfill the initial City obligation to provide easements to facilitate the Pier III electrical 
service. While the Pillar Mountain distribution line was fully contemplated in the three-party agreement, 
the flywheels and support equipment had been contemplated to be installed at Pier III in the agreement. 
Subsequent to execution of the agreement, KEA proposed relocating the flywheels to Gibson Cove for 
multiple reasons. The shift offers advantages to all parties: 
 

 Increase limited operations space at Pier III for terminal operations 
 Enhance access and security to flywheel installation 
 Reduce flywheel maintenance costs with lower corrosion potential 
 Maintain all performance parameters of the installation 

 
KEA acknowledged that the alternative flywheel location is being done at their request and has agreed to 
extend the City’s easement timing obligation to accommodate the extra effort. They have also agreed to 
provide any required site prep. 
 
The general proposed location of the flywheels is on a hillside with limited development potential. The 
majority of the requested Gibson Cove easement is on the former roadbed access to the Bio Dry facility. 
The road was moved outside the platted ROW a number of years ago. A short form replat is being 
performed to align the existing travel way with the ROW and allow granting of an easement. 
 
The general locations of the two easements are shown on the attached three pages. More detailed 
descriptions follow: 
 

 At Gibson Cove, for installation of the flywheels and certain electrical equipment, a portion of 
Alaska State Land Survey No. 89-10, files as Plat (re-platting in process) (Kodiak Borough 
Assessor’s Property I.D. 15213, Legal Description USS 2539 TR A GIBSON COVE) 
comprising approximately 5,000 square feet; 

 At Pillar Mountain, for installation of a new (40’ wide x 4,512’ long overhead and 40’ wide x 
207’ long underground) power line alignment through City property with Kodiak Borough 
Assessor’s Property I.D. 16427, Legal Description USS 3945 T28S R19W; 

 At Pillar Mountain, for installation of new (40’ wide x 278’ long underground) power line 
alignment through City property with Kodiak Borough Assessor’s Property I.D. 16205, Legal 
Description USS 2538A TR B. 

27



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 3 of 4 
 

 
The ordinance and these two easements are attached. Final locations will be provided after surveying. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Council may consider the following: 

1) Adopt Ordinance No. 1321 in the second reading to authorize the two easements. This alternative 
allows the City to move forward with electric improvements for the Pier III Replacement project 
as agreed to per the three-party agreement with KEA and Horizon Lines at the February 13, 
2014, meeting. 

2) Delay authorization of the easements by postponing adoption of the ordinance. This alternative 
would likely cause significant schedule delay impact to the project and increase project cost to 
the City. 

3) Do not adopt Ordinance No. 1321 to issue the easements. This alternative would have major 
negative impacts to the Pier III Replacement project that would likely involve redesign, 
significant cost increases to the project, and likely present legal complications that would 
negatively impact the City. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The City previously agreed to a three-party agreement with KEA and 
Horizon Lines in which the City funded $400,000 for the proposed electrical improvements, including 
the new 12.47 kVA power line from Pillar Mountain and the flywheel. The approval of easements will 
not result in any direct costs to the City, but are part of the Pier III Replacement project. 
 

LEGAL: The Grant of Easement documents and Ordinance No. 1321 were prepared by the City 
Attorney and are consistent with City practice of issuing utility easements on City property. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve Ordinance No. 1321 in the second 
reading. This action will move the authorization of the easements for the 12.47 kVA power line located 
on Pillar Mountain and the flywheel located at Gibson Cove forward along a timeline consistent with the 
needs of the Pier III project.  
 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION AND COMMENTS: The decision by KEA to locate 
the flywheel on the property at Gibson Cove is good for the City in that it frees up dock surface at the 
new Pier III facility and utilizes a portion of City property that has limited potential. The power line 
easement will benefit KEA customers, including the City at Pier III. I support Glenn and this approach 
and encourage Council to grant the easements by adopting Ordinance No. 1321. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1321 
  Attachment B: ARCADIS Memorandum dated July 10, 2014 

Attachment C: Grant of Easement (Power Line) 
Attachment D: Pillar Mountain Exhibit B 

28



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 4 of 4 
 

Attachment E: Grant of Easement (Flywheel) 
Attachment F: Gibson Cove Easement Exhibit A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED MOTION:  
Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1321. 

 

29



Ordinance No. 1321 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1321 

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-
ING THE GRANT TO KODIAK ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC OF AN APPROXI-
MATELY 5,000 SQUARE FOOT EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF ALASKA STATE 
LAND SURVEY NO. 89-10, USS 2539 TR A LOCATED IN THE VICINITY OF GIBSON 
COVE; AND A 40 FOOT WIDE BY APPROXIMATELY 4,997 FOOT LONG EASMENT 
TRAVERSING PILLAR MOUNTAIN ACROSS CITY PROPERTIES DESCRIBED AS 
USS 2538A TR B AND USS 3945; FOR A FLYWHEEL SYSTEM AND POWER LINE 
TO SUPPORT THE OPERATION OF A NEW CRANE AT PIER III  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak (“City”) owns a parcel of real property located in the vi-
cinity of Gibson Cove known as Alaska State Land Survey No. 89-10, filed as Plat 90-28 in the 
Kodiak Recording District (“Property A”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns a parcels of real property on Pillar Mountain known as USS 
2538A TR B (“Property B”) and USS 3945 (“Property C”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, Kodiak Electric Association (“KEA”) and Horizon Lines have en-
tered into an agreement under which KEA will provide a power line and flywheel system to sup-
port the operation of the new Horizon Lines crane to be installed at Pier III; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to provide KEA with a site for the power line and fly-
wheel system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and KEA have determined that an approximately 5,000 square foot 
easement (“Easement A”) on Property A, located near the intersection of the northern boundary 
of the Property with the western boundary of the Gibson Cove Road right-of-way, would be the 
most appropriate location for the flywheel system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and KEA have determined that a 40-foot wide easement (“Ease-
ment B”) across Property B and Property C between KEA facilities on Pillar Mountain Road and 
on Rezanof Drive in the vicinity of Pier III would be the most appropriate location for the power 
line; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is preparing a replat of Property A for the purpose, among others, 
of conforming the Gibson Cove Road right-of-way on Property A to the as-built location of Gib-
son Cove Road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the precise location and dimensions of Easement A cannot be determined 
until the approved replat of Property A relocates the Gibson Cove right-of-way, and it is in the 
best interest of the City to delegate to the City Manager the authority to determine the precise 
location and dimensions of Easement A after the replat of Property A has been prepared, and 
 

WHEREAS, a survey will be required to determine the precise location of Easement B, 
and it is in the best interest of the City to delegate to the City Manager the authority to determine 
the precise location of Easement B after the survey has been prepared.  

30

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1321 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20, the 

Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the grant of Easements A and B de-
scribed in the recitals above to KEA in the form now before this meeting, and the 
City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver 
grants of Easements A and B on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and con-
tent now before this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions and de-
letions therein as shall to her seem necessary, desirable or appropriate (including 
without limitation adjustments to the boundaries and dimensions of the Easements 
that result from a survey), the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of 
approval of any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the 
form and content of said document now before this meeting, and from and after the 
execution and delivery of said document, the City Manager and City Clerk, and their 
respective designees, each hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do all 
acts and things and to execute all documents as may be necessary to carry out and 
comply with the provisions of said document as executed. 

 
Section 2: The Easements authorized by this ordinance are subject to the requirements of City 

Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with signatures 
are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of this ordi-
nance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions are finally 
found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal and suffi-
cient, until the ordinance is approved at an election by a majority of the qualified vot-
ers voting on the question. If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, this 
ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage and publication. 

 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY CLERK 
 
First Reading: July 24, 2014   
Second Reading:    
Effective Date:     

31



1 

 

 
Memorandum  

  
TO: Aimee Kniaziowski 

FROM: Roe Sturgulewski 

DATE: July 10, 2014 

RE: Kodiak Pier III 
KEA Easements for Installation of Power Line and Flywheels 

 

 
This recommends Council approval of the two attached electrical easements to KEA which will allow them 
to install and maintain equipment related to providing medium voltage power to the Pier III project. One 
easement is on Pillar Mountain and will be used for a new 12.47 kVA power distribution line which will 
serve existing utility customers currently on the Pier III electrical circuit. The second easement is for the 
two flywheels and is in Gibson Cove. 
 
These easements are related to the three party agreement executed with KEA and Horizon structured to 
provide medium voltage electrical service for the new 100 gauge crane to be installed on the Pier III 
project.  Some of the major provisions of this agreement are: 
 

 By September 1, 2014, the City will provide all necessary easements for power line and flywheel 
work on City property or rights of way and will perform all site grading work needed for the 
flywheel installation; 

 By July 1, 2015, KEA will complete the power line extension and will have acquired and installed 
the flywheels needed for the operation of the new crane; 

 By December 31, 2015, Horizon will have placed the crane in operation. 
 
These easements fulfill the initial City obligation to provide easements to facilitate the Pier III electrical 
service. While the Pillar Mountain distribution line was fully contemplated in the three party agreement the 
flywheels and support equipment had been contemplated to be installed at Pier III in the agreement. 
Subsequent to execution of the agreement, KEA proposed relocating the flywheels to Gibson Cove for 
multiple reasons. The shift offers advantages to all parties: 
 

 Increase limited operations space at Pier III for terminal operations; 
 Enhance access and security to flywheel installation; 
 Reduce flywheel maintenance costs with lower corrosion potential; 
 Maintain all performance parameters of the installation. 

 
KEA has acknowledged that the alternative flywheel location is being done at their request and has agreed 
to extend the City’s easement timing obligation to accommodate the extra effort. They have also agreed to 
provide any required site prep. 

32

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



2 

 

 
The general proposed location of the flywheels is on a hillside with limited development potential. The 
majority of the requested Gibson Cove easement is on the former roadbed access the Bio Dry facility. The 
road was moved outside the platted ROW a number of years ago.  A short form replat is being performed 
to align the existing travel way with the ROW and allow granting of an easement. 
 
The general locations of the two easements are shown on the attached three pages. More detailed 
descriptions follow: 
 

 At Gibson Cove, for installation of the flywheels and certain electrical equipment, a portion of 
Alaska State Land Survey No. 89-10, files as Plat (re-platting in process) (Kodiak Borough 
Assessor’s Property I.D. 15213, Legal Description USS 2539 TR A GIBSON COVE) 
comprising approximately 5,000 square feet; 

 At Pillar Mountain, for installation of a new (40’ wide x 4,512’ long overhead and 40’ wide x 
207’ long underground) power line alignment through City property with Kodiak Borough 
Assessor’s Property I.D. 16427, Legal Description USS 3945 T28S R19W; 

 At Pillar Mountain, for installation of new (40’ wide x 278’ long underground) power line 
alignment through City property with Kodiak Borough Assessor’s Property I.D. 16205, Legal 
Description USS 2538A TR B. 

 
These two easements and the associated ordinances are attached. Final locations will be provided after 
surveying. 
 
Please contact me at 343-3013 if you have any questions. 

33



   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KODIAK RECORDING DISTRICT 
Recording requested by and 
after recording, return to: 
City of Kodiak 
Attn:  City Manager 
710 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak, AK  99615 
 
 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

This GRANT OF EASEMENT is entered into this ____ day of __________, 2014, 
by and between the City of Kodiak, Alaska, an Alaska municipal corporation 
(“GRANTOR”), whose address is 710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, Alaska 99615, and Kodiak 
Electric Association, Inc., an Alaska corporation (“GRANTEE”), whose address is P. O. 
Box 787, Kodiak, Alaska 99615.  

GRANTOR, in consideration of value received from GRANTEE, the adequacy 
and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged by GRANTOR, hereby grants to 
GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, an easement to erect, lay, construct, install, 
operate, inspect, repair, maintain, replace, improve and remove a power line 
(“Easement”) over, upon and through certain property of the GRANTOR (“Property”) 
located in the Kodiak Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, being 
more particularly described as follows: 

A portion of USS 3945 along a linear alignment approximately 40’ feet wide 
and 4,510 feet long (overhead) and 40 feet wide by 209 feet long 
(underground); and 
 
A portion of USS 2538A TR B along a linear alignment approximately 40 feet 
wide by 87 feet long (overhead) and 40 feet wide by 147 feet long 
(underground). 
 

The Easement is more particularly described in Exhibit “B” which is incorporated herein 
by reference. 

1. Any improvements constructed by GRANTEE shall be consistent with the 
limited use of the Easement authorized herein and shall be constructed at GRANTEE’s 
sole cost and expense.  GRANTEE shall, at all times and at its sole expense, keep and 
maintain the Easement and GRANTEE’s improvements thereon in good repair, and in 
neat, orderly, and sightly condition.  GRANTEE shall not cause or permit any litter, 

34

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 2 of 5 

debris, or refuse to be accumulated or stored upon the Easement and shall promptly 
remove all such materials without cost to GRANTOR. 

2. GRANTEE may not permit any lien, including without limitation a 
mechanic’s or materialman’s lien, to be recorded against the Property.  If any such lien 
is recorded against the Property, GRANTEE shall cause the same to be removed; or in 
the case of a mechanic’s or materialman’s lien, furnish the bond required in AS 
34.35.072 (or any comparable statute hereafter enacted).  GRANTEE hall indemnify 
and save GRANTOR harmless from all liability for damages, together with all costs and 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees) occasioned by any such lien. 

3. If GRANTEE ceases to use the Easement for power line and flywheel 
system purposes for a continuous period of not less than two (2) years, GRANTEE 
shall, upon a written request from GRANTOR, abandon the Easement and execute a 
quitclaim deed to GRANTOR.  Upon abandonment of the Easement, any improvements 
constructed by GRANTEE shall become the property of GRANTOR or, at GRANTOR’s 
option, shall be removed by GRANTEE at its sole expense. 

4. GRANTEE shall defend, indemnify, and hold GRANTOR, its officers, 
agents, and employees harmless against any and all actions, suits, proceedings, 
claims, losses, liens, costs, expenses, and liabilities of every kind and nature 
whatsoever, including without limitation attorney’s fees, arising from injury to or death of 
persons or loss of or damage to property, including property owned by GRANTOR, 
caused by or incurred as a result of GRANTEE’s use and occupancy of the Easement.  
This provision shall not apply to claims, actions, damages, losses, or proceedings 
caused solely by the negligence of officers, agents, or employees of GRANTOR.  The 
provisions of this Paragraph 4 shall survive termination of the Easement. 

5. GRANTEE shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, and keep in full 
force and effect, policies of public liability insurance in an amount not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for death or bodily injury or loss of or damage to property, 
sustained by any one person in any one occurrence.  GRANTOR and its officers and 
employees shall be named as insureds in all such policies.  GRANTEE shall give at 
least thirty (30) days advance written notice to GRANTOR before any cancellation or 
non-renewal of any such policy during the term of this Easement.  GRANTEE shall 
provide GRANTOR with proof of such insurance prior to the effective date of this 
Easement and this Easement shall not become effective until and unless such proof is 
made.  All insurance coverage required to be obtained under this Paragraph 5 shall be 
placed with a carrier licensed to do business in the State of Alaska.  No insurance 
coverage required by this Easement shall be obtained pursuant to a “claims made” 
policy unless, at the time such insurance is procured a “tail” policy covering all insured 
risks is also obtained. 

6. At all times during the term of this Easement, GRANTEE shall conduct its 
activities at the Easement in strict compliance with all applicable Environmental 

35



   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 3 of 5 

Requirements.  GRANTEE shall indemnify and hold harmless GRANTOR, its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against any and all Environmental Liabilities which 
GRANTOR or any of its officers, agents, and employees may hereafter suffer, incur, be 
responsible for or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at the Easement to 
the extent caused by or attributable to GRANTEE or GRANTEE’s activities.  The 
provisions of this Paragraph 6 shall survive termination of the Easement.  For purposes 
of this Paragraph 6: 

(a) “Environmental Hazard” shall mean Hazardous Materials, or the 
storage, handling, production, disposal, treatment, or release thereof.  

(b) “Environmental Liabilities” shall mean any liability, penalties, fines, 
forfeitures, demands, damages, losses, claims, causes of action, suits, judgments, and 
costs and expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, reasonable consultant fees and reasonable expert fees), 
arising from or based on environmental contamination or the threat of environmental 
contamination or noncompliance, or violation of, any Environmental Requirement, and 
shall include without limitation liability arising from: 

(1) Any governmental action, order, directive, administrative 
proceeding, or ruling. 

(2) Personal or bodily injuries (including death) or damages to 
any property (including loss of use) or natural resources. 

(3) Clean-up, remediation, investigation, monitoring, or other 
response action. 

(c) “Environmental Requirement” shall mean any law, regulation or 
legal requirement relating to health, safety, or the environment, now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, including without limitation the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act 
(TSCA), the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Clean Water 
Act (CWA), the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), and all similar state and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and guidance, now in existence or hereafter enacted, as 
each such law, rule, or regulation may be amended from time to time. 

(d) “Hazardous Material” shall mean any hazardous waste, hazardous 
substance, toxic substance, pollutant, or word of similar import, as used in any of the 
statutes cited above, or any other material, substance, or waste subject to 
environmental regulation under any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or 
ordinance now or hereafter in effect. 

7. Either party may give notice to the other by nationally recognized 
overnight courier service or United States mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid 

36



   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 4 of 5 

and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party at its address set forth 
above, or at such other address as such party designates by written notice.  Service of 
any notice shall be deemed received at the time of delivery or at the time delivery is 
refused. 

8. This Grant of Easement shall be construed and governed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alaska.  This Grant of Easement may not be modified in 
any respect whatsoever except with the mutual consent of all parties hereto, and then 
only by written instrument duly executed in recordable form. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Grant of Easement as 
of the date first set forth above.  
 
GRANTOR:     CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
      By:        
       Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager  
 
 
GRANTEE:     KODIAK ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
 
      By:        
      Its:        
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
    ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2014, by Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager of the CITY OF KODIAK, an Alaska municipal 
corporation, on behalf of the City. 

 
              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 
      My commission expires:     
 
 

37



   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 5 of 5 

STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
    ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2014, by _______________________, the ________________, of KODIAK ELECTRIC 
ASSOCIATION, INC., an Alaska corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 

 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 
      My commission expires:     
 
 

38



   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Exhibit A 

Exhibit “B” 
to Grant of Easement 

 
Legal Description and Drawing of Easement 

 
 
 
 

39



CITY OF KODIAK
(PROP. ID 16427)

CITY OF KODIAK
(PROP. ID 16205)

Kodiak001.mxd 07/10/14 R01

0 300 600
Feet

BACKGROUND MAP

CITY OF KODIAK
KODIAK, ALASKA

PILLAR MOUNTAIN EASEMENT

EXHIBIT
B

GRAVEL QUARRY

BUILDINGS

ROCK

MC7LL24

MC7LL25

MC7LL26

MC7LL27

MC7LL28

GC61

GC62

GC61R1
GC60

OCEAN BEAUTY
SEAFOODS, LLCNORTH PACIFIC

SEAFOODS INC.

KODIAK OIL
SALES INC

CITY OF
KODIAK

Kodiak Borough Assessor's Property ID: 16427
Legal Description: USS 3945, T28S R19W

LAFOLLETTE

NORTH PACIFIC
SEAFOODS INC.

OCEAN BEAUTY
SEAFOODS, LLC

MC7LL2

MC7LL3

MC7LL4

MC7

MC7LL1
MC7L1

MC6
MC8

MC7L3/WF8

WF6

MC7L4/WF9

MC7L2/WF7

WF5

Kodiak Borough Assessor's Property ID: 16205
Legal Description: USS 2538A TR B

Kodiak Borough Assessor's Property ID: 16427
Legal Description: USS 3945, T28S R19W

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX,
Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

0 100 200
Feet

INSET MAPS

Alignments
Proposed Overhead
New Underground
Existing Overhead

Power Poles
Existing Powerpoles
Proposed Powerpoles
Parcels

INSET A

INSET B

40

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment D



 

   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KODIAK RECORDING DISTRICT 
Recording requested by and 
after recording, return to: 
City of Kodiak 
Attn:  City Manager 
710 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak, AK  99615 
 
 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

This GRANT OF EASEMENT is entered into this ____ day of __________, 2014, 
by and between the City of Kodiak, Alaska, an Alaska municipal corporation 
(“GRANTOR”), whose address is 710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, Alaska 99615, and Kodiak 
Electric Association, Inc., an Alaska corporation (“GRANTEE”), whose address is P. O. 
Box 787, Kodiak, Alaska 99615.  

GRANTOR, in consideration of value received from GRANTEE, the adequacy 
and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged by GRANTOR, hereby grants to 
GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, an easement to erect, lay, construct, install, 
operate, inspect, repair, maintain, replace, improve and remove a power line and 
flywheel system (“Easement”) over, upon and through certain property of the 
GRANTOR (“Property”) located in the Kodiak Recording District, Third Judicial District, 
State of Alaska, being more particularly described as follows: 

A portion of Alaska State Land Survey No. 89-10, filed as Plat No. 
___________, USS 2539 TR A, comprising approximately 5,000 square 
feet; 

The Easement is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” which is incorporated herein 
by reference. 

1. Any improvements constructed by GRANTEE shall be consistent with the 
limited use of the Easement authorized herein and shall be constructed at GRANTEE’s 
sole cost and expense.  GRANTEE shall, at all times and at its sole expense, keep and 
maintain the Easement and GRANTEE’s improvements thereon in good repair, and in 
neat, orderly, and sightly condition.  GRANTEE shall not cause or permit any litter, 
debris, or refuse to be accumulated or stored upon the Easement and shall promptly 
remove all such materials without cost to GRANTOR. 

41

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment E



 

   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 2 of 5 

2. GRANTEE may not permit any lien, including without limitation a 
mechanic’s or materialman’s lien, to be recorded against the Property.  If any such lien 
is recorded against the Property, GRANTEE shall cause the same to be removed; or in 
the case of a mechanic’s or materialman’s lien, furnish the bond required in AS 
34.35.072 (or any comparable statute hereafter enacted).  GRANTEE hall indemnify 
and save GRANTOR harmless from all liability for damages, together with all costs and 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees) occasioned by any such lien. 

3. If GRANTEE ceases to use the Easement for power line and flywheel 
system purposes for a continuous period of not less than two (2) years, GRANTEE 
shall, upon a written request from GRANTOR, abandon the Easement and execute a 
quitclaim deed to GRANTOR.  Upon abandonment of the Easement, any improvements 
constructed by GRANTEE shall become the property of GRANTOR or, at GRANTOR’s 
option, shall be removed by GRANTEE at its sole expense. 

4. GRANTEE shall defend, indemnify, and hold GRANTOR, its officers, 
agents, and employees harmless against any and all actions, suits, proceedings, 
claims, losses, liens, costs, expenses, and liabilities of every kind and nature 
whatsoever, including without limitation attorney’s fees, arising from injury to or death of 
persons or loss of or damage to property, including property owned by GRANTOR, 
caused by or incurred as a result of GRANTEE’s use and occupancy of the Easement.  
This provision shall not apply to claims, actions, damages, losses, or proceedings 
caused solely by the negligence of officers, agents, or employees of GRANTOR.  The 
provisions of this Paragraph 4 shall survive termination of the Easement. 

5. GRANTEE shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, and keep in full 
force and effect, policies of public liability insurance in an amount not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for death or bodily injury or loss of or damage to property, 
sustained by any one person in any one occurrence.  GRANTOR and its officers and 
employees shall be named as insureds in all such policies.  GRANTEE shall give at 
least thirty (30) days advance written notice to GRANTOR before any cancellation or 
non-renewal of any such policy during the term of this Easement.  GRANTEE shall 
provide GRANTOR with proof of such insurance prior to the effective date of this 
Easement and this Easement shall not become effective until and unless such proof is 
made.  All insurance coverage required to be obtained under this Paragraph 5 shall be 
placed with a carrier licensed to do business in the State of Alaska.  No insurance 
coverage required by this Easement shall be obtained pursuant to a “claims made” 
policy unless, at the time such insurance is procured a “tail” policy covering all insured 
risks is also obtained. 

6. At all times during the term of this Easement, GRANTEE shall conduct its 
activities at the Easement in strict compliance with all applicable Environmental 
Requirements.  GRANTEE shall indemnify and hold harmless GRANTOR, its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against any and all Environmental Liabilities which 
GRANTOR or any of its officers, agents, and employees may hereafter suffer, incur, be 

42



 

   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 3 of 5 

responsible for or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at the Easement to 
the extent caused by or attributable to GRANTEE or GRANTEE’s activities.  The 
provisions of this Paragraph 6 shall survive termination of the Easement.  For purposes 
of this Paragraph 6: 

(a) “Environmental Hazard” shall mean Hazardous Materials, or the 
storage, handling, production, disposal, treatment, or release thereof.  

(b) “Environmental Liabilities” shall mean any liability, penalties, fines, 
forfeitures, demands, damages, losses, claims, causes of action, suits, judgments, and 
costs and expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, reasonable consultant fees and reasonable expert fees), 
arising from or based on environmental contamination or the threat of environmental 
contamination or noncompliance, or violation of, any Environmental Requirement, and 
shall include without limitation liability arising from: 

(1) Any governmental action, order, directive, administrative 
proceeding, or ruling. 

(2) Personal or bodily injuries (including death) or damages to 
any property (including loss of use) or natural resources. 

(3) Clean-up, remediation, investigation, monitoring, or other 
response action. 

(c) “Environmental Requirement” shall mean any law, regulation or 
legal requirement relating to health, safety, or the environment, now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, including without limitation the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act 
(TSCA), the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Clean Water 
Act (CWA), the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), and all similar state and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and guidance, now in existence or hereafter enacted, as 
each such law, rule, or regulation may be amended from time to time. 

(d) “Hazardous Material” shall mean any hazardous waste, hazardous 
substance, toxic substance, pollutant, or word of similar import, as used in any of the 
statutes cited above, or any other material, substance, or waste subject to 
environmental regulation under any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or 
ordinance now or hereafter in effect. 

7. Either party may give notice to the other by nationally recognized 
overnight courier service or United States mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid 
and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party at its address set forth 
above, or at such other address as such party designates by written notice.  Service of 

43



 

   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 4 of 5 

any notice shall be deemed received at the time of delivery or at the time delivery is 
refused. 

8. This Grant of Easement shall be construed and governed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alaska.  This Grant of Easement may not be modified in 
any respect whatsoever except with the mutual consent of all parties hereto, and then 
only by written instrument duly executed in recordable form. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Grant of Easement as 
of the date first set forth above.  
 
GRANTOR:     CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
      By:        
       Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager  
 
 
GRANTEE:     KODIAK ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
 
      By:        
      Its:        
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
    ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2014, by Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager of the CITY OF KODIAK, an Alaska municipal 
corporation, on behalf of the City. 

 
              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 
      My commission expires:     
 
 

44



 

   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Page 5 of 5 

STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
    ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2014, by _______________________, the ________________, of KODIAK ELECTRIC 
ASSOCIATION, INC., an Alaska corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 

 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 
      My commission expires:     
 
 

45



 

   
GRANT OF EASEMENT  Exhibit A 
 

Exhibit “A” 
to Grant of Easement 

 
Legal Description and Drawing of Easement 

 
 
 
 

46



ALASKA

Kodiak Borough Assessor's Property ID: 16213
Legal Description: USS 2539 TR A Gibson CoveCITY OF

KODIAK

KODIAK
FISHMEAL
COMPANY

CITY OF
KODIAK

FW-2

FW-1

T2

SW

GC 41R1

T1

Kodiak002.mxd 07/10/14 R00

0 100 200
Feet

GRAPHIC SCALE

CITY OF KODIAK
KODIAK, ALASKA

GIBSON COVE EASEMENT
EXHIBIT 

AService Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA,
USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User
Community

Engineered Layout. Approximate
Parcels

47

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment F



48



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. c. Memo Page 2 of 4 
 

outreach, development and completion of capital and other projects, and identification of funding 
sources needed to maintain City services and infrastructure.  

In addition to the standard city manager responsibilities, the Kodiak Manager has additional 
responsibilities such as functioning as the City’s sole human resource manager, including direct 
involvement in and oversight of the employee grievance process; providing planning for land 
development and land use; and serving as the Director of Emergency Services for the Kodiak Island 
Borough, which includes management of the emergency operations center and development of 
adequately trained emergency services team members. When a department head retires or resigns, the 
Manager also functions as the acting department director until a new director can be hired. 

The addition of a deputy city manager to the staff will help level out this workload, which is excessive. 
It will provide a much-needed back-up position for the Manager in the Manager’s absence, will be 
responsible for assigned projects and lead project teams as assigned, provide for the management of 
human resource functions, and assume the Manager’s duties and be acting department head if assigned 
to do so. The position will provide additional help with finding funding sources, identifying and 
conducting staff trainings, and help with risk management functions, which are currently the Manager 
and Finance Director’s responsibility. Most importantly, the position will provide important transitional 
help to the City, something that has not been available. 

According to the City Attorney, both the City Code and the PR&R require amendments that create and 
define this position’s roles and responsibilities. What follows is a summary of the Code and PR&R 
changes as outlined in the attached ordinance. 
 

 A new section will be added to KCC 2.08.065 identifying the Deputy City Manager position 
deputy chief administrator for the City appointed by the City Manager and lists all major 
functions of the position (Attachment A). 

Five sections of the PR&R will be amended.  

 Chapter 2, 2034.3 is amended by renumbering certain references, adds a new section delineating 
the personnel duties of the Deputy City Manager, and renumbers the following sections of the 
chapter to reflect the newly inserted section. 

 Chapter 4, Section 401 will be amended to reference the addition of a new pay band and grade. 
 Chapter 10 will be amended to add City Manager discretion to adjust the initial leave accrual rate 

when hiring department heads. 
 The Definition section of the PR&R will be amended to identify the Deputy City Manager 

position. 
 Pay Schedules I (annual salary schedule) and II (hourly pay schedule) will be amended to add the 

new band, grade, and sub-grade (E84) to reflect the Deputy City Manager position as the senior-
most managerial position in the classified service.   

49



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. c. Memo Page 3 of 4 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1) Adopt Ordinance No. 1322 in the second reading, which is staff’s recommendation, because it 

will improve work distribution and flow for the Manager, create a position that can fill in for the 
Manager when needed, and can take over the complexities of day-to-day human resource 
management. 

2) Delay, amend, or do not adopt Ordinance No. 1322. This is not recommended, because there will 
be no benefits without this help and there will continue to be the lack of a key transitional 
position in the event of an emergency.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: As can be seen from the salary band and grade amendment to the 
PR&R, the position is classified as an E84, the most senior management position in the classified 
service. The salary will fall somewhere within the range, depending on qualifications and experience of 
the successful appointee. 
 
LEGAL: The City Attorney advised that the Personnel Rules and Regulations and Chapter 2 of the City 
Code need to be amended to include the duties, responsibilities, and classification band and grade for the 
new Deputy City Manager position as outlined above. The attorney prepared the ordinance as well. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION AND COMMENTS: It is a good decision to add a 
deputy city manager position to the City’s organizational structure. It will allow me to have a senior 
manager available to help complete projects, organize training, oversee human resource issues, provide 
oversight and participate in short- and long-term planning, help research and develop policies and 
prepare reports and studies, as well as other tasks. A deputy city manager will also be assigned to act on 
my behalf when I’m out of the office, on vacation, or if I’m ill, and be assigned as an acting department 
head in the event of a resignation or retirement. The position will also provide some transitional stability 
to the City as there will be a senior manager on staff who understands the full scope of the organization 
and can see that Council and City policies are implemented correctly and followed. Per my 
recommendation, the new position title as reflected in the ordinance, PR&R and City Code, should be 
changed to deputy city manager from assistant city manager to maintain the job titles already in place 
within the City of Kodiak. The discussion was had during the August 26 work session and the changes 
are reflected in this memo and the attachment. 
 
I appreciate Council’s support in authorizing this position. Kodiak’s Manager has some unique 
requirements and duties not usually associated with city managers, which create the need for long work 
hours and lack of back-up in my absence. And, Kodiak is large enough and complex enough that a 
deputy will be very beneficial and provide the City with a succession plan for the Administration 
Department or at least someone to provide stability during periods of transition. 
 
 

50



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. c. Memo Page 4 of 4 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1322 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk’s Note: the proposed motions should be made in the following order 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  

1. Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1322. 
 
2. Move to amend Ordinance No. 1322 by substituting the word “assistant” with the word  

  “deputy” throughout the ordinance. 
 

51



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 1 of 8 

CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1322 

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ENACTING 
KODIAK CITY CODE 2.08.065, ASSISTANT DEPUTY CITY MANAGER—
APPOINTMENT, POWERS AND DUTIES; AMENDING CHAPTERS 2, 4 AND 10 OF 
THE CITY PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS; AMENDING THE 
DEFINITIONS IN THE CITY PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS; AND 
ADOPTING NEW SCHEDULES I AND II TO THE PERSONNEL RULES AND 
REGULATIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT, DUTIES AND 
COMPENSATION OF AN ASSISTANT DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 
 

WHEREAS, the City has decided to establish a new position of Assistant Deputy City 
Manager; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Kodiak City Code and the Personnel Rules and 
Regulations to provide for the duties and compensation of the Assistant Deputy City Manager 
position. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1: Kodiak City Code 2.08.065, Assistant Deputy City Manager—appointment, 

powers and duties, is hereby enacted to read as follows: 
 

2.08.065 Assistant Deputy City Manager—appointment, powers and duties.  
(a) There shall be an assistant deputy city manager who shall be appointed for an 
indefinite term by the city manager.  

(b) The assistant deputy city manager shall:  
(1) Serve as the deputy chief administrative officer and senior 

manager and department head of the administrative branch of the city 
government who reports to the city manager; 

(2) Assist the city manager in providing administrative oversight of 
daily operations of the city, ensuring implementation of and adherence to 
policies established by the city council by functioning as head of the 
senior management team;  

(3) Ensure organizational compliance with applicable laws, codes, 
regulations and standards and provide direct management and oversight of 
assigned functional areas; 

(4) Oversee all human resource functions and assist the city 
manager in administering all aspects of the city’s human resources 
program including the maintenance of personnel records; 

(5) Provide oversight and participate in the development and 
implementation of short and long range strategic plans, programs, policies 
and procedures for the city; 

52

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 2 of 8 

(6) Research, analyze, prepare and present management studies, 
reports, plans, resolutions, ordinances and other information; 

(7) Manage and participate in project activities as assigned by the 
city manager; and 

(8) Perform functions of the city manager when assigned.  
 

Section 2: The following sections in Chapter 2 of the Personnel Rules and Regulations are 
amended or enacted as set forth below. Except as it is amended by this section, 
Chapter 2 of the Personnel Rules and Regulations is retained in its current form. 
 
203.3 City Manager. The City Manager shall have the responsibility and 
authority to: 
(a) administer the personnel policies and procedures as approved by the City 

Council;  
(b) establish and maintain records of all employees in the City service, which 

shall include all pertinent personnel records (departments may retain copies 
of those personnel records necessary to comply with regulatory agencies, 
but originals of all records shall be maintained in the City Manager's office, 
and upon employee termination, all departmental records shall be forwarded 
immediately to the primary file); 

(c) develop and administer an affirmative action program to provide for equal 
opportunity in all aspects of City personnel administration; 

(d) foster and develop, in cooperation with appointing authorities and others, 
programs for the improvement of employees' effectiveness and productivity, 
including training, safety, health, counseling, and welfare; 

(e) maintain the classification and pay plans; 
(f) administer the City's recruitment and selection program except for staff 

identified below under heading 203.64.5 City Clerk;  
(g) insure uniformity in the application of discipline and processing of 

employee grievances; 
(h) appoint and dismiss all employees under the department heads' jurisdiction 

other than staff identified below under heading 203.64.5 City Clerk; 
(i) prepare and adopt such forms, reports, and procedures as may be necessary 

to carry out the City's personnel program; 
(j) establish personnel policies and procedures where needed in order to ensure 

consistency with state and federal requirements and to provide a more 
precise and consistent execution of the Personnel Rules and Regulations;  

(k) appoint and dismiss all City personnel except those appointed by the 
Council as stated in the Charter and those identified below under heading 
203.64.5 City Clerk;  

(l) notwithstanding any of these policies and procedures may, in an emergency, 
request interdepartmental assistance be provided; and see that adopted 
changes to the Personnel Rules and Regulations or changes to position 
descriptions are distributed in writing to all affected employees in a timely 
manner. 

 

53



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 3 of 8 

203.4 Assistant Deputy City Manager. The Assistant Deputy City Manager 
shall have the responsibility and authority to: 
(a) serve as the deputy chief administrative officer and senior manager and 

department head of the administrative branch of the City government who 
reports to the City Manager. 

(b) oversee all human resource functions and assist the City Manager in 
administering all aspects of the City’s human resources program including 
the maintenance of personnel records; 

(c) enforce the Personnel Rules and Regulations;  
(d) assist department heads and the City Manager in making all hiring, 

termination, and disciplinary recommendations; 
(d) perform functions of the City Manager when assigned.  
 
203.54 Department Heads. Department heads shall have the responsibility and 
authority to: 
(a) enforce the Personnel Rules and Regulations; 
(b) keep employees in their departments informed of current personnel policies 

and procedures; 
(c) participate in the grievance procedures as specified (see Chapter 9); 
(d) if approved by the City Manager, appoint employees to vacant positions 

within their respective departments in accordance with established personnel 
rules and procedures; 

(e) develop training programs for employees within their respective 
departments; 

(f) under the supervision of the City Manager, administer discipline within their 
respective departments and delegate such authority to supervisory personnel 
as deemed appropriate; 

(g) conduct orientation for all new employees, and have issued to each a copy 
of current personnel regulations and position description which outlines job 
duties; such orientation shall include introductions to fellow workers, work 
standards, safety regulations, break periods, supplies, etc.; and 

(h) under the direct supervision of the City Manager, be involved in the 
appointment or dismissal of departmental employees under the department 
head’s jurisdiction. 

 
203.64.5 City Clerk. As the head of the Clerk’s department, the City Clerk shall 
have the responsibility and authority to: 
(a) enforce the Personnel Rules and Regulations; 
(b) keep employees in the Clerk's department informed of current personnel 

policies and procedures; 
(c) participate in the grievance procedures as specified (see Chapter 9); 
(d) recruit and appoint employees to vacant positions within the Clerk's 

department in accordance with established personnel rules and procedures; 
(e) develop training programs for employees within the Clerk's department; 
(f) administer discipline within the Clerk's department and delegate such 

authority to supervisory personnel as deemed appropriate; 

54



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 4 of 8 

(g) conduct orientation for all new employees, and have issued to each a copy 
of current personnel regulations and position description which outlines job 
duties; such orientation shall include introductions to fellow workers, work 
standards, safety regulations, break periods, supplies, etc.;  

(h) have discipline and dismissal authority over all employees in the Clerk's 
department; 

(i) classify positions in the Clerk’s department, subject to approval of the City 
Council 

 
203.75 Supervisory Personnel. Supervisory personnel shall have the 
responsibility to: 
(a) implement personnel policies, rules and regulations in the units under their 

supervision; 
(b) supervise the administration of discipline to employees under their 

supervision and recommend termination (see Sections 708 and 1303); 
(c) train new employees and participate in the development of other employees; 
(d) evaluate employee performance and participate in the development of 

position descriptions (see Chapter 7); and 
(e) participate in the grievance procedures as specified (see Chapter 9). 
 
203.86 All Employees. Employees of the City shall be presented with, and sign 
for, a copy of the personnel rules in effect on the hiring date and subsequently 
shall have the responsibility to: 
(a) read and understand these rules and ask the immediate supervisor to explain 

these rules if questions arise; 
(b) understand the function of the department assigned and how that function 

relates to the total mission of the City and all of its departments; 
(c) discuss with the immediate supervisor any questions relating to the 

interpretation or application of these rules either informally or formally 
through the grievance procedure; 

(d) bring to the attention of the immediate supervisor any change in duties as 
outlined in the position description form given to the employee at hiring; 

(e) submit in writing recommended changes to the rules through the appropriate 
supervisory channels to the City Manager; and 

(f) all employees shall have access to their personnel files. 
 

Section 3: The following section in Chapter 4 of the Personnel Rules and Regulations is 
amended as set forth below.  Except as it is amended by this section, Chapter 4 of 
the Personnel Rules and Regulations is retained in its current form. 

 
401 PAY PLAN  
 
The pay plan shall include the schedule of pay for nineteen twenty pay bands, 
grades, and sub-grades from A11 through E83 E84, each with a minimum, 
midpoint, and maximum rate of pay for all positions in the classified service.  The 
objectives of the pay plan shall be to: 

55



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 5 of 8 

(a) provide an appropriate salary structure to recruit and retain an adequate 
number of competent employees; and 

(b) provide appropriate pay incentives for high employee productivity.  
 

Section 4: The following sections in Chapter 10 of the Personnel Rules and Regulations are 
amended as set forth below.  Except as it is amended by this section, Chapter 10 
of the Personnel Rules and Regulations is retained in its current form. 

 
1002 ANNUAL LEAVE ACCRUAL RATE 
 
Annual Leave accrues according to the following schedule for all classified 
employees not enrolled in the Combined Personal Leave Program, except Fire 
Department personnel on the platoon system (see Section 1603).  The City 
Manager may increase the initial annual leave accrual rate of 4.62 hours per 
pay period when appointing new department heads, but movement to the 
next accrual rate must be consistent with required time in service. 

4.62 hours per pay period—first through twenty-fourth month 
6.47 hours per pay period—twenty-fifth through sixtieth month 
7.39 hours per pay period—sixty-first through one hundred twentieth 
month 
8.31 hours per pay period—after the one hundred twentieth month 

 
Section 5: The following definition is added to the Personnel Rules and Regulations. Except 

as it is amended by this section, the definitions in the Personnel Rules and 
Regulations are retained in their current form. 

 
ASSISTANT DEPUTY CITY MANAGER. The deputy chief administrative 

officer and senior manager and department head of the administrative 
branch of the City government who reports to the City Manager and assists 
in the proper administration of all affairs of the City.  

 
Section 6: Schedules I and II to the Personnel Rules and Regulations are deleted, and 

replaced with Schedules I and II attached hereto.  
 
Section 7: This ordinance shall be effective one month after its final passage and publication 

in accordance with Kodiak Charter Section 2-13. 
 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 

56



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 6 of 8 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK 
 
 
First Reading: July 24, 2014 
Second Reading: 
Effective Date: 

57



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 7 of 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

58



 
Ordinance No. 1322 
Page 8 of 8 

 

59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

60



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

61



62



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Pass Ordinance No. 1323 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public hearing at 
the next regular or special Council meeting. This is staff’s recommendation, because it will 
provide income to the City and allow the site to continue to be used as a communications site for 
the community.  

2) Do not pass the ordinance, which is not recommended, because it would result in a loss of 
revenue and would affect communications in Kodiak. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There is a financial benefit each year of the lease through receipt of 
lease payments into the General Fund starting at $13,577 per year with a 2.5% increase in rent payments 
each subsequent year of the lease. The successor to CCATT, LLC, NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites 
Tower Holdings, LLC, will be responsible for site management, maintenance, insurance, and rental 
payments. 
 
 LEGAL: The City Attorney worked with staff to develop the lease and drafted the attached ordinance 
to meet the requirements of the City Charter, Article V-17. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Ordinance No. 1323 in the first 
reading and advance to the second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council 
meeting. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support the renewal of the lease for the Pillar Mountain 
Communications Site No. 11 with CCATT, LLC’s successor, NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower 
Holdings, LLC. This will provide some income for the General Fund, and the site will continue to 
provide a communications service to the community of Kodiak. I recommend Council pass Ordinance 
No. 1323 in the first reading and advance to the second reading and public hearing at the next regular or 
special Council meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Ordinance 1323 
Attachment B: Lease for Pillar Mountain Communications Site No.11 
Attachment C: Letter from Crown Castle requesting renewal, dated 7/2/14 

   
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to pass Ordinance No. 1323 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public 
hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

63



Ordinance No. 1323 
City/NCWPCS 
Pillar Mt. No. 11 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1323 

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
AUTHORIZING A LEASE OF A COMMUNICATION SITE IN U.S. SURVEY 3945 ON 
PILLAR MOUNTAIN TO NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES TOWER HOLDINGS, LLC 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns property on Pillar Mountain known as Pillar Mountain 
Communication Site No. 11 that it has leased to New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (“New 
Cingular”), for a communications site; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City approved the assignment of the lease by New Cingular to CCATT, 
LLC (“CCATT”) by Resolution No. 2014–05 on January 16, 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease to CCATT will expire on December 31, 2014; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company (“NCWPCS”), is the successor to CCATT, and NCWPCS has requested that 
the City Council authorize the Lease Agreement – Pillar Mountain Communications Site No. 11 
("Lease") that now is before this meeting; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City that the Lease be authorized.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20, the 

Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the Lease with NCWPCS for a 
term commencing January 1, 2015, and ending December 31, 2019, of the 
communications site described in the Lease, located on U.S. Survey 3945 on 
Pillar Mountain in the City of Kodiak. 

 
Section 2: The form and content of the Lease between the City and NCWPCS hereby are in 

all respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the City Manager hereby is 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Lease to 
NCWPCS on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before 
this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein 
as she shall deem necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, modifications, 
additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said document now 
before this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said 
document, the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do 
all acts and things and to execute all documents as may be necessary to carry out 
and comply with the provisions of the Lease as executed. 

 

64

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1323 
City/NCWPCS 
Pillar Mt. No. 11 
Page 2 of 2 

Section 3: The Lease authorized by this ordinance is subject to the requirements of City 
Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with 
signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of 
this ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions 
are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found 
legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at an election by a majority of 
the qualified voters voting on the question. If no referendum petition with 
signatures is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage 
and publication. 

 
CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 
   MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  CITY CLERK 
 
First Reading: 
Second Reading:  
Effective Date:  

65



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 1 of 7 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

PILLAR MOUNTAIN COMMUNICATION SITE NO. 11 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES  

TOWER HOLDINGS, LLC 
 

LEASE made as of the 1st day of January 2015, by and between the CITY OF KODIAK, 
an Alaska municipal corporation ("Lessor"), and NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES TOWER 
HOLDINGS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Lessee”): 
 

1. Leased Premises. Upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and subject to 
the prompt payment and performance by Lessee of each and every sum and other obligation 
hereinafter referred to, Lessor does hereby lease, let, and demise to Lessee, and Lessee does 
hereby lease from Lessor the following described premises within U.S. Survey 3945 in the 
Kodiak Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described 
as follows: 
 

Commencing at a brass cap monument set in a gun turret, “U.S. Army Corp of Engineers 
Alkod Rm 2;"  
Thence N 51 20' 30" E 2433.41' to the true point of beginning; 
Thence S 88 17' 08" E, 80.00 feet; 
Thence S 01 42' 52" W, 40.00 feet; 
Thence N 88 17' 08" W, 80.00 feet; 
Thence N 01 42' 52" E, 40.00 feet to the true point of beginning; 
Containing 3200.0 square feet more or less 

 
These leased premises are hereinafter referred to as the "Site." 
 

2. Term. A. This Lease shall continue in effect for a period of (5) five years from 
January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2019 (“Term”), provided, however, that either party 
shall have the right to cancel this Lease upon [six (6) months’] [one (1) year’s] written notice in 
advance of the date of such cancellation, such notice to be by certified mail sent to the usual 
mailing address of the party to be notified.  

B. Lessee has the option to extend the Term for one (1) additional five (5) year period 
(“Extended Term”), provided that:  

(1) Lessee gives Lessor written notice of its exercise of the option not more than 
one (1) year and not less than one hundred twenty (120) days before the last day of the 
initial Term.  

(2) At the time Lessee exercises the option, and at all times thereafter until the 
Extended Term commences, Lessee is not materially in default of any term or condition 
of this Lease.  

Lessee’s failure to exercise the option to extend the Term in strict compliance with all the 
requirements in this section renders that option null and void.  
 

3. Rental. A. Lessee agrees to pay as and for rent in equal monthly installments 
which fall due on the first of each calendar month the annual sum of $13,577 for the first year of 

66

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 2 of 7 

the Lease Term and according to the following schedule for the remaining four years of the 
Term. 
 

Year Rental 

2 102.5% of Year 1 
3 105.0% of Year 1 
4 107.5% of Year 1 
5 110.0% of Year 1 

 
B. If Lessee exercises its option in Section 2(B) to extend the Term of this Lease, the 

annual rent in the first year of the Extended Term shall be 102.5% of the annual rent in the fifth 
year of the initial Term, and the annual rent in subsequent years of the Extended Term shall be 
determined by the formula that is provided for determining the annual rent in the initial Term. 

C. If a monthly installment is not paid by the fifth of the month in which it becomes due, 
a penalty of $30 will be added to the rental amount; and, in addition, simple interest shall accrue 
and be added to the rental amount at the rate of 12% per annum from the due date until paid. 
 

4. Conditions of Lease. The Site shall be used solely as a communications site for a 
cellular telephone system.  The Site will house a 100' self-supporting radio tower, a 10' x 20' 
communications equipment shelter, and propane powered backup generator.  
 

5. Improvements. Lessor shall have the right to make additions, alterations, or 
improvements to the Site which will not impede Lessee's access to or use of the Site. Lessee 
shall have the right to erect or construct a suitable building and/or associated structures as 
provided in Section 4. Any improvements constructed by Lessee shall be consistent with the 
limited use of the Site authorized by this Lease and shall be constructed at Lessee's expense. 
Upon termination of this Lease, such improvements shall become the property of Lessor or, at 
Lessee's option, removed by Lessee at its sole expense. Lessee shall permit Lessor, at Lessor’s 
expense, to connect the equipment shelter for Lessor’s public safety communications system to 
the backup power supply in the communications shelter that Lessee has constructed on the Site. 
Notwithstanding anything in Section 6 to the contrary, Lessor shall be solely responsible for 
maintaining the connection, and Lessee shall provide Lessor with reasonable access to Lessee’s 
communications equipment shelter for that purpose. 
 

6. Maintenance. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, Lessee shall, at 
all times and at its sole expense, keep and maintain the Site and its improvements in good repair, 
and in neat, orderly, and slightly condition. Lessee shall not cause or permit any litter, debris, or 
refuse to be accumulated or stored upon the Site and shall promptly remove all such materials 
without cost to Lessor. 
 

7. Indemnity. Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold Lessor, its officers, agents, 
and employees harmless against any and all actions, suits, proceedings, claims, loss, liens, costs, 
expense, and liability of every kind and nature whatsoever arising from injury to or death of 
persons or loss of or damage to property, including property owned by the Lessor, caused by or 
incurred as a result of Lessee's use and occupancy of the Site under this Lease, including, but not 
limited to, attorney's fees reasonably incurred for defense thereof. This provision shall not apply 

67



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 3 of 7 

to claims, actions, damages, losses, or proceedings caused solely by the negligence of officers, 
agents, or employees of Lessor. 
 

8. Insurance. A. Lessee shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, and shall 
keep in full force and effect throughout the Term of this Lease, the following policies of 
insurance: 

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance, $1,000,000 combined single limit 
per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage claims arising from all operations 
related to this Lease.  The general aggregate limit shall be $2,000,000. 

(2) Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance, $1,000,000 combined single 
limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

(3) Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability.  Worker's Compensation 
shall be statutory as required by the State of Alaska.  Employers Liability shall be 
endorsed to the following minimum limits and contain USL&H coverage endorsement, if 
applicable:  bodily injury by accident--$1,000,000 each accident; and bodily injury by 
disease--$1,000,000 each employee, $1,000,000 policy limit. 
B. Other Insurance Provisions.  The policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 
(1) Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability  

(i) Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds. The coverage shall contain no special limitation on 
the scope of protection afforded to Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers. 

(ii) Lessee's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers 
shall be excess of Lessee’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

(iii) Lessee's insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against 
Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
work performed by Lessee or any sublessee for Lessor. 
(2) Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability. Lessee's insurer shall agree 

to waive all rights of subrogation against Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers for losses arising from work performed by Lessee or any sublessee for Lessor. 

(3) All Insurance. Each insurance policy required by this Lease shall be endorsed 
to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after 30 days’ prior written notice for nonpayment of 
premium or fraud on the part of Lessee, or 60 days prior written notice for any other 
reason, has been given to by the insurer to Lessor by certified mail, return receipt 
requested.  
C. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of 

no less than A-: VII. 
D. Verification of Coverage. Lessee shall furnish Lessor with approved certificates of 

insurance and with certified copies of all endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
section.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificates are to be on forms 

68



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 4 of 7 

which meet industry standard.  Lessor reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of 
all required insurance policies, at any time. 
 

9. Environmental. A. For purposes of this section: 
(1) Environmental Requirement shall mean any law, regulation, or legal 

requirement relating to health, safety, or the environment, now in effect or hereinafter 
enacted, including but not limited to the Comprehensive Environmental Response 
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 
the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Clean Water 
Act (CWA), the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and all similar state and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and guidance, now in existence or hereinafter enacted, as 
each such law, rule, or regulation may be amended from time to time. 

(2) Environmental Hazard shall mean Hazardous Materials (as defined 
hereinafter), or the storage, handling, production, disposal, treatment, or release thereof. 

(3) Hazardous Material shall mean 
(i) any hazardous waste, any extremely hazardous waste, or any restricted 

hazardous waste, or words of similar import, as defined in the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.) 

(ii) any hazardous substances as defined in the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 USC §9601 et 
seq.) 

(iii) any toxic substances as defined in the Toxic Substances Control Act 
(15 USC §2601 et seq.) 

(iv) any pollutant as defined in the Clean Water Act (33 USC §1251 et 
seq.) 

(v) gasoline, petroleum, or other hydrocarbon products or by-products 
(vi) asbestos 
(vii) any other materials, substances, or wastes subject to environmental 

regulation under any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or 
ordinance now or hereafter in effect 
(4) Environmental Liabilities shall mean any liability, penalties, fines, forfeitures, 

demands, damages, losses, claims, causes of action, suits, judgments, and costs and 
expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement, reasonable attorneys' 
fees, reasonable consultant fees, and reasonable expert fees), arising from or based on 
environmental contamination or the threat of environmental contamination, or 
noncompliance, or violation of, any Environmental Requirement and shall include, but 
not be limited to, liability arising from 

(i) any governmental action, order, directive, administrative proceeding, or 
ruling 
(ii) personal or bodily injuries (including death) or damages to any property 
(including loss of use) or natural resources 

(iii) clean-up, remediation, investigation, monitoring, or other response 
action 
(5) Environmental Release shall mean any release, spill, leak, discharge, injection, 

disposal, or emission of any Hazardous materials into the environment. 

69



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 5 of 7 

B. At all times during the term of the Lease, Lessee shall conduct its activities at the Site, 
and shall ensure that any invitee of Lessee conducts its activities at the Site in strict compliance 
with all applicable Environmental Requirements. 

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless Lessor, Lessor's successors and assigns, and Lessor's present and future officers, 
directors, employees, and agents, (collectively "Lessor Indemnitees") from and against any and 
all Environmental Liabilities which Lessor or any or all of the Lessor Indemnitees may hereafter 
suffer, incur, be responsible for, or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at the Site 
to the extent caused by or attributable to Lessee or Lessee's activities, or by any invitee of Lessee 
or by the activities of any invitee of Lessee. 

D. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Lease, Lessor agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless Lessee, Lessee's successors and assigns, and Lessee's present and future officers, 
directors, employees and agents (collectively "Lessee Indemnitees") from and against any and all 
Environmental Liabilities which Lessee or any of the Lessee Indemnitees may hereafter suffer, 
incur, be responsible for, or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at the Site to the 
extent caused by or attributable to Lessor or Lessor's activities, or by any invitee of Lessor or by 
the activities of any invitee of Lessor. 

E. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Lease. 
 

10. Utility Charges and Taxes. All utility charges shall be borne and paid for by 
Lessee, together with all personal or real property taxes or assessments that may be levied 
against the Lessee by reasons of its occupancy of the Site or its rights hereunder. 
 

11. Operation of Equipment. In installing, operating, or maintaining any equipment 
on the Site and in its general management of the Site, Lessee will act in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations and so as not to cause interference with any other radio or 
television transmitting or receiving equipment whether located on the Site or not. Lessee will at 
all times protect from interference all frequencies assigned to Lessor whether or not such 
frequencies are in use.  Before altering, replacing or adding any transmission equipment at the 
Site, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense, arrange for an inter-modulation analysis so as to 
verify that no unacceptable signal interference will result from the alteration, replacement or 
addition.  Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of the inter-modulation analysis.  Lessee will 
not do, attempt, or permit any acts in connection with this Lease, which could be construed as a 
violation of law. 
 

12. Condition of Site. Lessee takes the Site in its present condition and Lessor shall 
have no responsibility for its condition, or for any damage suffered by Lessee or any other 
person due to such conditions. 
 

13. Assignment and Subleasing. A. Except as provided in this section, Lessee may 
not sublease the Site, either in whole or in any portion, without first obtaining the written 
approval of the City Council. Lessee may not assign, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise encumber 
all or any portion of this Lease or the Site without first obtaining the written approval of the City 
Council. Any assignment, pledge, or encumbrance approved by the Council shall be subject to 
all terms and provisions of this Lease. Any assignment, pledge, or encumbrance executed 
without the proper approval of the Council shall be void and of no force and effect.  

70



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 6 of 7 

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A of this section, Lessor authorizes 
Lessee to sublease to Port Graham Development Corporation and ACS Wireless, Inc. under the 
following conditions: 

(1) Approval of the subleases does not release Lessee from any of its obligations 
under this Lease. 

(2) The sublessees agree to comply with all terms of this Lease regarding the use 
of the Site, insurance, and environmental requirements. 

(3) The insurance provided by Lessee must cover the activities of the sublessees. 
(4) Lessee shall remit to Lessor 30% of any revenues collected monthly. 

C. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A of this section, Lessee will have the 
right to assign, sell, or transfer its interest under this Lease without the approval or consent of 
Lessor, to Lessee’s parent or member company or any affiliate or subsidiary of, or partner in, 
Lessee or its parent or member company or to any entity which acquires all or substantially all of 
Lessee’s assets in the market defined by the Federal Communications Commission in which the 
Site is located by reason of a merger, acquisition, or other business reorganization. Upon 
notification to Lessor of such assignment, transfer, or sale, Lessee will be relieved of all future 
performance, liabilities, and obligations under this Lease. 
 

14. Default and Re-Entry. If Lessee fails to cure any default of the conditions of this 
Lease within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by Lessor, or in the event insolvency 
proceedings should be instituted by or against Lessee, then Lessor may terminate the Lease as of 
such date and re-enter the Site and remove all property therefrom and Lessee shall remain liable 
for the payment of rental to the extent provided by law. 
 

15. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder will be 
given by first class certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally 
recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be effective when properly sent and received, 
refused or returned undelivered.  Notices will be addressed to the parties as follows:   
 
If to LESSOR: If to LESSEE: 

City of Kodiak  
Attn: City Clerk 
710 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower 
Holdings LLC 
c/o Crown Castle USA Inc. 
E. Blake Hawk, General Counsel 
Attn: Legal Department 
2000 Corporate Drive  
Canonsburg, PA 15317 

 
16. Applicable Law. Lessee shall, at all times, in its use and occupancy of the Site 

and in the conduct of its operations thereon, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
laws, ordinances, and regulations. 
 
  

71



 
Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 
December 31, 2019 
City Contract No. 216603 
NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC  Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the date first 
written above. 
 
CITY OF KODIAK 
710 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak, Alaska 99615 
 
 
 
Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager 
 

 NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower 
Holdings LLC, by and through CCATT 
LLC, its attorney in fact. 
 
 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
Debra L. Marlar, City Clerk 

   

 

72



73

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

75



76



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

DISCUSSION: Council members initiated discussion of the possibility of increasing the elected 
officials’ stipend in February of this year. Staff researched the issue in preparation for discussion at the 
March 25, 2014, work session.  
 
The City Attorney explained that Council would enact an ordinance increasing the compensation for 
the Mayor and Council with the increase becoming effective after the date of the next regular City 
election on October 7, 2014. Two sections of the City Code, KCC 2.08.025 and 2.08.034 would also 
need to be amended to reflect a new amount. 
 
The information was discussed at the March 25, 2014, work session. Council voiced a consensus to put 
it on an upcoming agenda for approval but did not specify when. Council briefly discussed the ordinance 
again at the July 22, 2014, work session and voiced a consensus to bring the ordinance forward for first 
reading at the August meeting. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Council may pass Ordinance No. 1324 in the first reading and advance to second 
reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting. Council may also amend the 
ordinance, postpone it, or decide not to advance it to second reading. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The compensation increase is reflected in the FY2015 operating 
budget effective October 2014. 
  
LEGAL: The City Attorney was consulted and explained the Charter provision required a change in 
compensation to be done by ordinance, which would be introduced and passed before the election in 
October, but take effect after the election. The Attorney also drafted the ordinance to amend the 
appropriate sections of Kodiak City Code Chapter 2 and to have an effective date of November 1, 2014, 
which is after the election. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1324 
Attachment B: Selection of compensation amounts for elected officials from AML 
  FY2014 Salary and Benefit Survey  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to pass Ordinance No. 1324 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public 
hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

77



CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1324 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING KODIAK CITY CODE 2.08.025, 
COMPENSATION OF COUNCILMEMBERS, AND KODIAK CITY CODE 2.08.034, 
COMPENSATION OF MAYOR, TO INCREASE MONTHLY COMPENSATION FOR 
COUNCILMEMBERS FROM $200.00 TO $400.00, AND TO INCREASE MONTHLY 
COMPENSATION FOR THE MAYOR FROM $250.00 TO $500.00 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, that:  
 
Section 1: Kodiak City Code 2.08.025, Compensation of councilmembers, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 

2.08.025 Compensation of councilmembers. Each councilmember shall be 
compensated at the rate of $400.00 $200.00 per month, to be paid on a monthly 
basis. 

 
Section 2: Kodiak City Code 2.08.034, Compensation of mayor, is hereby amended to read 

as follows: 
 

2.08.034 Compensation of mayor. The mayor shall be compensated at the rate of 
$500.00 $250.00 per month, to be paid on a monthly basis. 

 
Section 3: This ordinance shall be effective upon the date that is one month after its final 

passage and publication in accordance with Kodiak Charter Section 2–13, and 
shall apply to the monthly compensation of councilmembers and the mayor 
commencing November 1, 2014. 

 
CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
CITY CLERK 
 
First Reading:   
Second Reading:   
Effective Date:  

78

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



79

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



80



81



82



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

83



84



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1) Approve the amendment to the NOAA warehouse lease excluding the 147 sf office space on the 

second floor. The space would then be available for lease by others. This is the recommendation 
of staff.  

2) Do not approve the amendment. NOAA could elect to forfeit the entire lease or ask to re-
negotiate the terms. This would not be beneficial to the City. NOAA pays a premium rate for the 
facility, and the exclusion of the office space has minimal impact to the overall warehouse 
revenues. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The current lease for the office and warehouse space is $97,386 
annually, or $8,114 per month. Excluding the office space would reduce the lease rate to $94,787.97 
annually or $7,898.97 per month, a reduction in revenue to the Harbor’s Cargo Fund of $2,580.33 
annually or $215.03 per month. 
 
LEGAL: The ordinance was prepared by the City Attorney. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve Ordinance No. 1325 in the first 
reading and advance to the second reading in support of amending the NOAA Warehouse Lease for Pier 
II to exclude 147 sf of office space for the remainder of the lease term, effective August 1, 2014. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support NOAA’s request and Lon White’s recommendation to 
authorize the amendment of the lease for Pier II warehouse office space. NOAA is a good tenant and as 
mentioned above, they have no need for the office space. Therefore, I recommend Council pass 
Ordinance No. 1325 in the first reading and advance it to second reading and public hearing at the next 
regular or special Council meeting.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Attachment A:  Ordinance No. 1325 
 Attachment B:  NOAA lease 2009-2019  
 Attachment C:  Amendment No. 1 to NOAA lease 
 Attachment D:  NOAA e-mail requesting amendment, dated July 7, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to pass Ordinance No. 1325 in the first reading and advance it to second reading and 
public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

85



Ordinance No. 1325 
NOAA Warehouse Lease Amendment 
Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1325 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING AN AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF KODIAK AND 
NOAA FOR OFFICE AND WAREHOUSE SPACE ON PIER II  
 

WHEREAS, the City owns a warehouse building on Pier II that contains office and 
warehouse space; and 
 

WHEREAS, under a U.S Government Lease for Real Property dated March 1, 2009 (the 
“Lease”), the City leased 5,547 square feet of office and warehouse space on Pier II to the U S 
Department of Commerce National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”); and  
 

WHEREAS, NOAA desires to amend the Lease to relinquish the leased office space, 
with a corresponding reduction in rent; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that it would be appropriate and in the public interest to 
authorize the amendment to the Lease. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska 
as follows: 
 
Section 1: The Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes Lease Amendment No. 1 to 

Lease No 133954 with the U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (the “Amendment”) to reduce the leased area to 
5,400 square feet and to adjust the annual rent under the Lease to $94,787.67  

 
Section 2: The form and content of the Amendment hereby are in all respects authorized, 

approved and confirmed, and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered 
and directed to execute and deliver the Amendment to the U.S. Department of 
Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration on behalf of the 
City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting but with such 
changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as she shall deem neces-
sary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evi-
dence of approval of any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions 
therein from the form and content of said document now before this meeting; and 
from and after the execution and delivery of said document the City Manager 
hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to exe-
cute all documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provi-
sions of the Amendment as executed. 

 
Section 3: This ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage and publication. 
 
 
 
 

86

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1325 
NOAA Warehouse Lease Amendment 
Page 2 of 2 
 

  CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 MAYOR 

   
CITY CLERK 

 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:   
Effective Date:   

87



88

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



89



90

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



91



From: Nancy Naumann
To: Owen, Martin; Kniaziowski, Aimee
Cc: Teri Hudgins; Terria Heinlein - 10PRAA
Subject: Lease Amendment to reduce square footage
Date: Monday, July 07, 2014 10:07:15 AM
Attachments: LA 1 for reducing off space only w ex A.pdf

Ms. Kniaziowski and Mr. Owen, 

Attached is Lease Amendment (LA) to reduce square footage by giving up the 2nd
floor office space. The warehouse space remains the same. 
Please submit to the council for approval as soon as possible. When approved please
sign two copies (signature on page and initials on page 2) and send both copies to
Terria for her signature at the address below. 

Terria Heinlein
General Services Administration 
400 15th Street SW 
Auburn, WA 98001-6505

We will send you an executed copy of LA1 for your lease files. 
Call me at 907-271-4211 or Teri Hudgins (907-271-3150) if you have any
questions. 

Thank you  
Nancy Naumann
Post Occupancy Specialist - S.Brooks & Associates Inc.
Contractor - General Services Administration
Northern Service Center, Anchorage, Alaska
Phone 907-271-4211 
Fax 907-271-3020 

92

mailto:nancy.naumann@gsa.gov
mailto:mowen@city.kodiak.ak.us
mailto:akniaziowski@city.kodiak.ak.us
mailto:theresa.hudgins@gsa.gov
mailto:terria.heinlein@gsa.gov
cperkins
Text Box
Attachment D



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

93



94



AUGUST 28, 2014  
Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

 ALTERNATIVES:  
1) Council may approve placement of the sign “No Parking This Side of Street” by adopting 

Resolution No. 2014–30. This would allow Public Works crews to clean the drainage ditches, 
which allows for better drainage and safer flow of traffic during the winter months. Staff believes 
it is in the best interest of public safety in that area of Mission Road.  

2) Council may choose not adopt the resolution and sign placement. If the posting of the “No 
Parking This Side of Street” is not approved, the situation of drainage affecting the properties on 
the southeast side of the street, snow removal, and narrow roadway during winter months 
remains static. Staff does not recommend this.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Public Works estimates the cost of installation is roughly $1,000 for 
signs, post and bases and roughly $5,300 for installation. The large labor cost has to do with Mission 
road being so narrow that staff must use two flaggers to safely control traffic. Staff will use the Public 
Works Streets supply account to purchase the materials. 
 
LEGAL: According to the City Attorney, the City Code, KCC 10.16.010 adopts by reference state 
stopping, standing and parking regulations, including 13 AAC 02.340(d)(1)(K), which prohibits 
stopping, standing or parking a vehicle at a place where official traffic-control devices prohibit stopping, 
standing, or parking. He recommended Council adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Chief of 
Police to post signs prohibiting parking in the area along Mission Road where staff wants to prohibit 
parking to alleviate traffic congestion. The Attorney drafted the attached resolution.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize and direct the Chief of Police to 
place no parking signage along the northwest side of Mission Road from 12th Avenue to Erskine Avenue 
to improve drainage and public safety by adopting Resolution No. 2014–30.  
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Residents along this stretch of Mission Road have complained 
about safety issues relating to people parking on the northwest side of the road for several years. The 
cars and equipment parked in the ROW cause snow removal problems, drainage problems, and other 
safety related problems that cannot be addressed except by prohibiting parking along this stretch of 
roadway. After conferring with the City Attorney, who explained the City can place traffic control 
devices (signs) that prohibit parking in specific areas, staff sent out letters (see attached) to all residents 
who could be affected. The resolution, which was drafted by the Attorney, has an effective date of 
October 1, 2014, to give people in the area a chance to relocate their vehicles and equipment before the 
signs are posted and the parking violations enforced. I support this action as the only immediately 
available solution to the problem along this stretch of Mission Road and ask Council to adopt Resolution 
No. 2014–30. 
 
 
 
 

95



AUGUST 28, 2014  
Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Attachment A: Resolution No. 2014–30 
 Attachment B: Map of Mission Road area where the “No Parking This Side of Street” signage 
    is to be placed 
 Attachment C: Sample letter to affected residents mailed the week of August 11, 2014  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014–30. 
 

96



CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–30 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-
ING AND DIRECTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE TO PLACE SIGNS PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON THE NORTHWEST SIDE OF MISSION ROAD BETWEEN ERSKINE 
AVENUE AND 12TH AVENUE  
 
 
 WHEREAS, Mission Road between Erskine Avenue and 12th Avenue is exceptionally 
narrow, and carries a high volume of traffic; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parking of vehicles on both sides of Mission Road between Erskine Av-
enue and 12th Avenue causes traffic congestion and delays, and is a public safety hazard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the best means to reduce traffic congestion and the public safety hazard in 
this area is to prohibit parking on the Northwest side of Mission Road between Erskine Avenue 
and 12th Avenue. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that: 
 
 Section 1.  The Chief of Police is authorized and directed to place signs stating “No 
Parking” on the Northwest side of Mission Road between Erskine Avenue and 12th Avenue. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution shall become effective October 1, 2014.  
 

  CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 Adopted:  

 
 

97

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



98

pubdir
Callout
Start of No Parking along Northwest side of Mission Rd.

pubdir
Callout
End of No Parking along Northwest side of Mission Rd.

pubdir
Callout
Northwest Side of Mission Road

pubdir
Typewritten Text
Between Erskine Ave and 12th Ave along Northwest side of Mission Road "No ParkingThis Side of Street"

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 

CITY OF KODIAK 
2410 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, AK  99615 

Public Works Department 
(907) 486-8060 Fax: (907) 486-8066 

August 12, 2014 
 
Name 
Address 
Kodiak AK 99615 
 

Subject:   Notice “No Parking this Side of Street” 

Dear Mission Road Resident: 

If you have received this letter, you have property that is within the area that will be affected by 
this proposed “No Parking This Side of Street” along Mission Road.  Due to many complaints 
from area residents as well as others using Mission Road about drainage, traffic congestion and 
snow removal problems we have found the only solution is to post the section of Mission Road 
from 12th Avenue south to the intersection of Erskine Avenue “No Parking This Side of Street” 
along the northwest side of the street. 

As you the residents of the area are well aware of the problems, the on-street parking creates  
drainage that overflows the street onto private lots and the road is so narrow during the winter 
two vehicles have a difficult time passing.  Both of these issues can be improved by not having 
parking on the northwest side of the street through this section.  We recognize that this will not 
completely correct the problems but do believe it will improve the safety of the area and reduce 
the drainage problems affecting the properties on the southeast side of the street. 

The southeast side of the street will not be signed because although many residents do park 
within the Right of Way they either have parking decks or are outside of the guardrail.  You may 
have noticed that in order to keep the width of the street as wide as we can during the winter we 
try and move the snow to the northwest side of the street as soon as practical to improve traffic 
safety. 

This section of the street has very limited shoulders or open drainage ditch and parking in the 
area creates significant problems with access to keep the drainage working as well as having a 
place to put the snow. 

Once the “No Parking This Side of Street” signs are posted Public Works crews will be cleaning 
the drainage ditch and replacing the storm drain culvert crossing Mission Road at the bottom of 
11th Avenue. 

This topic will be in front of the City Council at their work Session on August 26 and is 
scheduled for Council approval at their regular meeting August 28.  If you have comments or 
concerns, you are welcome to attend the work session or regular City Council meetings on those 
dates. 

 

99

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



 

CITY OF KODIAK 
2410 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, AK  99615 

Public Works Department 
(907) 486-8060 Fax: (907) 486-8066 

Sincerely, 

Mark Kozak 
Public Works Director 

100



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

101



102



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

Linda Freed was reappointed in August 2012 and Albert Tyler Schmeil was reappointed in August 2011. 
The Borough and City received confirmation that Mr. Schmeil and Ms. Freed were willing to be 
reappointed. The Borough Assembly authorized the reappointment of Ms. Freed on August 7, 2014 and 
plan to authorize Mr. Schmeil’s appointment at their September 4, 2014, meeting. Jeff Stephan indicated 
his interest in continuing to serve as the City’s representative from the crab harvester representative.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: Council may approve, amend, or fail the resolution and continue to recruit for 
applicants. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2014–31. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The terms for each of the appointees expired in July 2014. The 
three directors are willing to be reappointed, and I recommend the City Council adopt this resolution. 
With this appointment, KFDA will have a full complement of Directors. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Attachment A: Resolution No. 2014–31  
 Attachment B: E-mail information on reappointments for Linda Freed, Tyler Schmeil, and Jeff 

Stephan 
 Attachment C: KFDA Member List 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
 Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014–31. 

103



Resolution No. 2014–31 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–31 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK APPOINT-
ING MEMBERS TO THE KODIAK FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Pacific Fishery Management Council adopted the Bering 
Sea/Aleutian Islands Crab Rationalization Program as Amendments 18 and 19 to the Fishery 
Management Plan for Bering Sea/Aleutian Islands King and Tanner Crabs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the Program, Kodiak was designated as an eligible crab community 
(ECC) and in connection with such designation, the City of Kodiak and the Kodiak Island 
Borough have the authority to jointly exercise certain rights of first refusal (ROFR) with respect 
to processor quota shares (PQS) allocated under the Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to exercise the ECC ROFR, the City of Kodiak and the Kodiak Island 
Borough have jointly designated the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association (KFDA) as the 
region’s eligible crab community entity (ECCE) having the authority to do so on their behalf; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bylaws of the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association provide for 
appointment of Directors to the Board of the KFDA by the Kodiak City Council and the Kodiak 
Island Borough Assembly; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bylaws of the KFDA state, in part, that Directors shall serve until their 
successors are appointed and qualified; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the terms for two joint appointee seats and one City appointee seat have 
expired; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Jeff Stephan has requested reappointment to the City’s crab harvester 
representative seat and Linda Freed and Albert Tyler Schmeil have requested reappointment to 
joint appointee seats on the KFDA board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Kodiak Island Borough reappointed Linda Freed at its August 7, 2014, 
regular meeting and are scheduled to reappoint Albert Tyler Schmeil at its September 4, 2014, 
meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that the following individuals are appointed as Directors of the Kodiak Fisheries Development 
Association, with the noted terms: 
 

City Appointees 
Crab Processor Rep. – Mike Woodruff (7/16) 
Crab Harvester Rep. – Jeff Stephan (7/17)  

104

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Resolution No. 2014–31 
Page 2 of 2 

Joint Appointees 
Stosh Anderson (7/16) (joint appointment) 
Linda Freed (07/17) (joint appointment) 
Albert Tyler Schmeil (07/17) (joint appointment) 
 
 
Borough Appointees 
Crab Processor Rep. – Tuck Bonney (07/15) 
Crab Harvester Rep. – Jerry Bongen (07/15) 

 
 

  CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 Adopted:  

 

105



106

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



107



 

Revision Date: 8/4/14 
Revised by: DM 

KODIAK FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH  /  CITY OF KODIAK 

NAME TERM PHONE EMAIL 

CITY APPOINTEES 
Crab Processors Representative 
Mike Woodruff  

 
 

7/2016 

 
 

486-8100 

 
 

mwoodruff62@yahoo.com   

Crab Harvester Representative 
Jeff Stephan  

 
7/2014 

 
486-4568 

 
jstephan@ptialaska.net 

JOINT APPOINTEES 
Stosh Anderson 
Linda Freed 
Albert Tyler Schmeil 

 
7/2016 
7/2014 
7/2014 

 
486-3673 
486-5314 
486-8587 

 
stosh_a@hotmail.com 

freed@gci.net 
tmschmeil@gci.net 

BOROUGH APPOINTEES 
Crab Processors Representative 
Tuck Bonney 

 
 

7/2015 

 
 

486-3329 

 
 

tbonney@npsi.us 

Crab Harvester Representative 
Jerry Bongen 

 
7/2015 

 
486-6245 

 
jbongen@mac.com 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

710 MILL BAY ROAD, ROOM 219      

KODIAK, AK 99615        

    

CITY MANAGER, AIMEE KNIAZIOWSKI        486-8640        akniaziowski@city.kodiak.ak.us 

 STAFF: 

KFDA bylaws state: Directors shall be appointed by joint resolution of the Borough Assembly and City Coun-
cil. Appointments shall take place annually at July meetings of the Borough Assembly and City Council. Direc-
tors shall have staggered three (3) year terms of office, assigned by a random selection method at the first 
Board meeting, such that as close as possible to one third (1/3) of the Board is up for appointment each year. 
Directors shall serve until their successors are appointed and qualified. 

108

mailto:mwoodruff62@yahoo.com
mailto:mwoodruff62@yahoo.com
mailto:jstephan@ptialaska.net
mailto:stosh_a@hotmail.com
mailto:freed@gci.net
mailto:tmschmeil@gci.net
mailto:tbonney@alaskapacificseafoods.com
mailto:jbongen@mac.com
mailto:akniaziowski.city.kodiak.ak.us
cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

109



110



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None 
  
LEGAL: Staff requested the City Attorney to review the resolution PANDA presented to the City 
Council at the July 24 meeting. His memo and formatted resolution are attached. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2014–32 
Attachment B:  PANDA submitted resolution “Restoring Constitutional Governance” 

 Attachment C:  Memo from Tom Klinkner, dated August 4, 2014 
Attachment D:  Wikipedia article on NDAA for Fiscal Year 2012 
Attachment E:  Fact Sheet: FY2014 NDAA Summary, Armed Services Committee 
Attachment F:  Civil Liberties, 2013, “The Military Should be Allowed to Detain Non- 
  Citizen Terrorist Suspects” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014–32.  

111



 

Resolution No. 2014–32 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–32 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK OPPOSING 
SECTION 1021 OF THE 2012 NATIONAL DEFENSE AUTHORIZATION ACT  
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak, Alaska is not a “battlefield” subject to the “laws of 
war;” and 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that neither Congress nor the President 
can constitutionally authorize the detention and/or disposition of any person in the United States, 
or citizen of the United States “under the law of war” who is not serving “in the land or naval 
forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger” (Ex Parte 
Milligan, 71 U.S. 2, 1866); and  
 

WHEREAS, for the purposes of this resolution, the terms “arrest,” “capture,” “detention 
under the law of war,” “disposition under the law of war,” and “law of war” are used in the same 
sense and shall have the same meaning as such terms have in the 2012 NDAA, Section 1021. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that: 
 

Section 1.  Notwithstanding any treaty, federal, state, or local law or authority, enacted or 
claimed, including, but not limited to, an authorization for use of military force, national defense 
authorization act, or any similar law or authority enacted or claimed by Congress or the Office of 
the President directed at any person in Kodiak, Alaska who is not serving “in the land or naval 
forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger,” the Council 
finds that it would be unconstitutional, and therefore unlawful for any person to:  

a. arrest or capture any person in Kodiak, Alaska, or citizen of Kodiak, Alaska with-
in the United States, with the intent of “detention under the law of war,” or 

b. actually subject a person in Kodiak, Alaska to “disposition under the law of war,” 
or  

c. subject to targeted killing any person in Kodiak, Alaska or any citizen of Kodiak, 
Alaska within the United States. 
 

Section 2.  The Council of Kodiak, Alaska requests that the Alaska State Legislature rec-
ognize the duty of the state of Alaska to interpose itself between unconstitutional usurpations by 
the federal government or its agents and the people of this state, as well as the duty to defend the 
unalienable natural rights of the people, all of which is consistent with our oaths to defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the constitution of Alaska against all enemies, foreign and 
domestic. 
 

Section 3.  The Council of Kodiak, Alaska requests that our Congressional delegation 
commence immediately with efforts to repeal the unconstitutional sections of the 2012 NDAA, 

112

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 

Resolution No. 14–32 
Page 2 of 2 

to-wit, sections 1021 and 1022, and any other section or provision which will have the same or 
substantially the same effect on any person in the United States not serving “in the land or naval 
forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger.”  
 

Section 4. The Council of Kodiak, Alaska requests our Congressional delegation intro-
duce, support, and secure the passage of legislation which clearly states that Congress not only 
does not authorize, but in fact prohibits the use of military force, military detention, military trial, 
extraordinary rendition, or any other power of the “law of war” against any person in the United 
States not serving “in the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of 
War or public danger.” 
 

Section 5.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Council.  
 

  CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 Adopted:  

 
 

113



RESTORING CONSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE RESOLUTION 

OF KODIAK, ALASKA 

 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak, Alaska is not a “battlefield” subject to the “laws of war;” and 

WHEREAS, Federal Judge Katherine Forrest has ruled Section 1021 of the 2012 NDAA is 

unconstitutional; and 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that neither Congress nor the President can 

constitutionally authorize the detention and/or disposition of any person in the United States, 

or citizen of the United States “under the law of war” who is not serving “in the land or naval 

forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger;” and  

(Ex Parte Milligan, 71 U.S. 2, 1866) 

WHEREAS, for the purposes of this resolution, the terms “arrest,” “capture,” “detention under 

the law of war,” “disposition under the law of war,” and “law of war” are used in the same 

sense and shall have the same meaning as such terms have in the 2012 NDAA, Section 1021; 

and therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED, that notwithstanding any treaty, federal, state, or local law or authority, 

enacted or claimed, including, but not limited to, an authorization for use of military force, 

national defense authorization act, or any similar law or authority enacted or claimed by 

Congress or the Office of the President directed at any person in Kodiak, Alaska who is not 

serving “in the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or 

public danger,” it is unconstitutional, and therefore unlawful for any person to:  

a. arrest or capture any person in Kodiak, Alaska, or citizen of Kodiak, Alaska within the 

United States,  with the intent of “detention under the law of war,” or 

114

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



RESTORING CONSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE RESOLUTION 

OF KODIAK, ALASKA 

 

 

b. actually subject a person in Kodiak, Alaska to “disposition under the law of war,” or  

c. subject any person to targeted killing in Kodiak, Alaska, or citizen of Kodiak, Alaska 

within the United States; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that Kodiak, Alaska requests the Alaska State Legislature recognize the duty of the 

state of Alaska to interpose itself between unconstitutional usurpations by the federal 

government or its agents and the people of this state, as well as the duty to defend the 

unalienable natural rights of the people, all of which is consistent with our oaths to defend the 

Constitution of the United States and the constitution of Alaska against all enemies, foreign and 

domestic; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that Kodiak, Alaska requests our Congressional delegation commence immediately with 

efforts to repeal the unconstitutional sections of the 2012 NDAA, to-wit, sections 1021 and 1022, and 

any other section or provision which will have the same or substantially the same effect on any person 

in the United States not serving “in the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in 

time of War or public danger;” and be it finally 

RESOLVED, that Kodiak, Alaska requests our Congressional delegation introduce, support, and secure 

the passage of legislation which clearly states that Congress not only does not authorize, but in fact 

prohibits the use of military force, military detention, military trial, extraordinary rendition, or any other 

power of the “law of war” against any person in the United States not serving “in the land or naval 

forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger.” 

*   *   *   END   *   *   * 

 
 

115



RESTORING CONSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE RESOLUTION 

OF KODIAK, ALASKA 

 

 
REFERENCES AND SOURCE DOCUMENTS 

 
 NDAA Resolutions for State Legislators, County Commissioners, Sheriffs, City Councils, etc… 
http://theintolerableacts.org/wordpress/ndaa-resolutions/ 
 
HR1540 Conference Report as Approved by the United States Congress 
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CREC-2011-12-12/pdf/CREC-2011-12-12-pt1-PgH8356-5.pdf 
Alternate source: http://patriotcoalition.com/docs/HR1540conf.pdf 
 
Authorization of Use of Military Force (See bottom of page 6 for final version as signed into 
law.) 
http://patriotcoalition.com/docs/Authorization-of-Use-of-Military-Force.pdf 
 
President Obama’s Signing Statement: Dec. 31, 2011 
http://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/2011/12/31/statement-president-hr-1540 
 
Declaration of Independence: (See Freedom Documents tab) 
http://nccs.net/freedom_defined/index.htm?const.html&2 
 
Constitution of the United States of America: (See Freedom Documents tab) 
http://www.nccs.net/freedom_defined/index.htm?const.html&2 
 
House Voting Record for final version of 2012 NADA 
http://clerk.house.gov/evs/2011/roll932.xml 
 
Senate Voting Record for final version of 2012 NADA 
http://www.senate.gov/legislative/LIS/roll_call_lists/roll_call_vote_cfm.cfm?congress=112&session=1&vote=00230 
 

2012 NDAA, SECTIONS: 1021, 1022,1023 
http://patriotcoalition.com/docs/NDAA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012 (1021-1022-1023).doc 
 
Judge Katherine Forrest places permanent injunction against NDAA in Hedges v. Obama 
http://theintolerableacts.org/docs/Hedges-v-Obama-Permanent-Injunction.pdf  
 

 

The Intolerable Acts ACTION CENTER is a joint project of Patriot Coalition and Oath Keepers. The project 

logo is derived directly from American history, particularly that relating to abuses of the colonists by 

King George. The "skull and crossbones" image is from a 1765 Stamp Act protest cartoon, which pre-

dates the "Intolerable (Coercive) Acts" and is super-imposed over the actual hand-written Bill of Rights 

as proposed by the 1st Congress and sent to the States for ratification. 

116

http://theintolerableacts.org/wordpress/ndaa-resolutions/
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CREC-2011-12-12/pdf/CREC-2011-12-12-pt1-PgH8356-5.pdf
http://patriotcoalition.com/docs/HR1540conf.pdf
http://patriotcoalition.com/docs/Authorization-of-Use-of-Military-Force.pdf
http://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/2011/12/31/statement-president-hr-1540
http://nccs.net/freedom_defined/index.htm?const.html&2
http://www.nccs.net/freedom_defined/index.htm?const.html&2
http://clerk.house.gov/evs/2011/roll932.xml
http://www.senate.gov/legislative/LIS/roll_call_lists/roll_call_vote_cfm.cfm?congress=112&session=1&vote=00230
http://patriotcoalition.com/docs/NDAA%20FOR%20FISCAL%20YEAR%202012%20%281021-1022-1023%29.doc
http://theintolerableacts.org/docs/Hedges-v-Obama-Permanent-Injunction.pdf
http://patriotcoalition.com/
http://oathkeepers.org/
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Intolerable_Acts
http://images.search.yahoo.com/search/images?_adv_prop=image&fr=goodsearch-yhsif&sz=all&va=1765+stamp+act+protest+cartoons


117

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



118

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment D



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment E



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment F



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



 

AUGUST 28, 2014 
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 2 of 2 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Funds for this contract are included in the FY2015 Boatyard/Lift 
Enterprise Fund budget approved by Council in June 2014.  
 
LEGAL: Previous contracts with Mr. Feda received legal and insurance review. The terms and 
wording have not changed.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The Harbormaster recommends Council authorize the technical 
services contract with Willard A. Feda for Harbor Department boat lift operations for a two-year term 
at the rate of $100/hr with funds coming from the Boat Yard/Vessel Lift Enterprise Fund, Professional 
Services Account. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Bill Feda has provided his expertise to the City and Harbor for 
the past five years. He is safe, responsible, and willing to meet the Harbormaster’s need for an 
experienced lift operator. We are fortunate to have a local resident with this set of unique skills. I 
recommend Council approve this two-year contract and authorize me to execute the documents on 
behalf of the City.  
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Attachment A: Technical Services Contract for Boatlift Operations 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to approve a two-year technical services contract, Contract No. 216592, with Willard A. 
Feda to operate the Harbor Marine Travelift, with funds coming from the Boat Yard/Vessel Lift 
Enterprise Fund, Professional Services Account and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
documents on behalf of the City. 

149



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 1 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

CITY OF KODIAK 
Technical Service Agreement 

Marine Travelift Operator for Kodiak Shipyard 
Contract No. 216592 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 1 of September 2014, by and between Willard A. Feda 
(hereinafter called “Contractor”), and the CITY OF KODIAK (hereinafter called “City”). 
 

WITNESSETH THAT: 
 

WHEREAS City desires to engage Contractor to be the lead operator of the 660-ton Marine Travelift 
for the shipyard operated by the City of Kodiak; and 
 

WHEREAS Contractor is properly licensed and insured and has the experience and ability to 
perform such services; and 
 

WHEREAS the parties hereto desire to enter into a basic agreement setting forth the terms under 
which Contractor will, as requested, perform such work. 
 

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment of Contractor. Contractor agrees to provide technical services in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement. A written description of the work to be performed is set out in the attached 
exhibit, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

 
2. Scope of Services. The scope of services in Exhibit A describes and defines the services and 

responsibilities. The Contractor shall exercise independent professional judgment in performing its 
obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement. The Contractor services shall be available upon 
execution of the Agreement by the City. The Contractor shall perform the tasks as set forth in Exhibit 
A. The Contractor shall also attend or otherwise learn all necessary training required for effective 
shipyard and Travelift operations, including safety training, operating training, and environmental 
awareness. 

 
3. Term and Duration. This agreement is for two (2) years, beginning September __, 2014, and ending 

August __, 2016.  It may be extended by the mutual written agreement of City and Contractor. 
 
4. Performance. Contractor agrees to perform the work on a non-exclusive basis, when requested, as 

described in the Scope of Services at Exhibit A. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any work or 
incur any expense other than his own labor without the prior written approval of the City. 

 
5. Operator Compensation. The City agrees to pay the Contractor for the services under this Agreement at 

$100 per hour for the duration of the contract. The Contractor will not be compensated by vessel owners 
for operation of the Travelift. Upon receipt of monthly invoices, City agrees to make payments to 
Contractor within 30 days during the term of this agreement. 

 
6. Labor 
 

a. The City shall provide labor to assist the Contractor. Use of City personnel will be coordinated by the 
Harbormaster or the Deputy Harbormaster. Operations after normal business hours will be avoided 
unless deemed necessary and appropriate by the Harbormaster or Deputy Harbormaster. 

 

150

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 2 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

b. Contractor will communicate with City personnel prior to movement of each vessel and clearly 
explain details of the operation, ensuring all involved personnel understand their role, their specific 
tasks and communication protocols. 

 
c. As a safety precaution, Contractor agrees to not perform the lift or launch vessels without sufficient 

personnel (minimum two) to assist in such activities. 
 
7. Independent Contractor Status. In performing under this Agreement, Contractor acts as an independent 

contractor and shall have responsibility for and control over the details and means for performing the 
services required hereunder. Contractor shall have the authority to direct activities of the additional 
personnel as described in Section 6 above, so long as such direction is intended for the safety of the 
vessels and personnel on-site and during training of a back-up Travelift operator. 

 
8. Assignment. Contractor is selected for his individual expertise in operating a Marine Travelift and, 

therefore, shall not assign any of the duties of this Agreement without the prior written consent of City, 
which the City may withdraw at its sole discretion. 

 
9. Subcontracting. Contractor may not subcontract its performance under this Agreement without prior 

written consent of City, which the City may withhold at its sole discretion. 
 
10. Designation of Representative. The Parties agree, for the purposes of this Agreement, the City shall be 

represented by and may act only through the City Manager or Harbormaster or such other person as 
he/she may designate in writing. 

 
11. Termination. 
 

a. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in whole or in part at any time, by 
delivery of twenty (20) days written notice, specifying the extent and effective date hereof. After 
receipt of such notice, Contractor shall stop work hereunder to the extent and on the date specified in 
such notice, terminate all other commitments to the extent they relate to the work terminated, and 
deliver to City all computations and other material and information prepared or developed hereunder 
in connection with the work terminated. 

 
b. In the event of any termination pursuant to this clause, Contractor shall be entitled to be paid as 

provided herein for direct labor hours expended and reimbursable costs incurred prior to the 
termination pursuant to Section 4 hereof, and for such direct labor hours and reimbursable costs as 
may be expended or incurred thereafter with City's approval in concluding the work terminated, it 
being understood that Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation on anticipated services 
not performed. Except as provided in this clause, any such termination shall not alter or affect the 
rights or obligations of the parties under this Agreement. 

 
12. Ownership and Use of Documents. Contractor agrees that all pertinent calculations, reports, data and 

other documents prepared for the City hereunder are the property of the City and the City shall have the 
right, without payment of additional compensation, to disclose, reproduce and use, and to authorize 
others to disclose, reproduce and use such documents for projects worked on. 

 
13. Performance Standard. Services performed under this Agreement shall be in accordance with public 

sector administration requirements and Best Management Practices and shall comply with all applicable 
codes and standards. 

 

151



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 3 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

14. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor shall, in the performance of this Agreement, comply with 
all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, order, rules and regulations applicable to its 
performance hereunder. 

 
15. Records and Audit. Contractor agrees to maintain sufficient and accurate records and books of hauls and 

launches, including detailed hauling profiles of each vessel, complete date and time records, showing all 
direct labor hours expended and all costs incurred and the same shall be provided in a timely fashion to 
the City for its record keeping. 

 
16. Notices. Official notice that either party hereto desires to give the other shall be delivered through the 

United States mail by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as below. The addresses 
specified may be changed by either party by giving written notice thereof to the other party. 

 
 To City:       To Contractor: 
 Kodiak City Manager     Willard A. Feda 
 Aimée Kniaziowski     P.O. Box 2933 
 710 Mill Bay Rd, Room 219    Kodiak, Alaska  99615 
 Kodiak, Alaska  99615 
 
17. Venue/Applicable Law. The venue of any legal action between the parties arising as a result of this 

Agreement shall be laid in the Third Judicial District of the Superior Court of the State of Alaska and this 
contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska. 

 
18. Attorney’s Fees. In the event either party institutes any suit or action to enforce its right hereunder, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in 
such suit or action and on any appeal there from. 

 
19. Waiver. No failure on the part of City to enforce any covenant or provisions herein contained, nor any 

waiver of any right hereunder by City, unless in writing and signed by the parties sought to be bound, 
shall discharge or invalidate such covenants or provisions or affect the right of City to enforce the same 
or any other provision in the event of any subsequent breach or default. 

 
20. Binding Effect. The terms, conditions and covenants contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to 

the benefit of, and bind the parties and their respective successors. 
 
21. Entire Agreement/Modification. This agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties 

with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all prior negotiations and understandings are superseded 
and replaced by this Agreement and shall be of no further force and effect. No modification of this 
Agreement shall be of any force or effect unless reduced to writing, signed by both parties and expressly 
made a part of this Agreement. 

 
22. Indemnity. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend ,with legal counsel approved by City of Kodiak, and 

hold the City of Kodiak and its administrators, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and servants 
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, losses, expenses, and liabilities for, or 
related to, loss of or damage to property or injury to or death of any person relating to or arising or 
resulting in any way from the performance by the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors under the 
Agreement, or the WORK or SERVICES provided or the condition or use thereof, regardless of any 
negligence of the City of Kodiak or their respective agents or employees, excepting only such loss, 
damage, injury or death which results solely from the negligence or willful misconduct of the City of 
Kodiak. 

 

152



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 4 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

23. Insurance. The Contractor shall carry, at his sole expense, shall procure and maintain the following 
insurance: 
a. Minimum Scope of Insurance 

(1) Commercial Marine Liability 
(2) Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance 

b. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
Contractor shall maintain limits no less than: 
(1) Commercial Marine Liability: 

(A) $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 
claims arising from operation of the City of Kodiak 660-ton Marine Travelift. The general 
aggregate limit shall be $2,000,000. 

(2) Auto Liability: 
(A) $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

c. Other Insurance Provisions 
The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
(1) Commercial Marine Liability and Automobile Liability 

(A) The City of Kodiak, its Administrator, officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or 
on behalf of the Contractor; products and completed operations of the Contractor, premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Contractor, or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitation on the scope of 
protection afforded to the City of Kodiak, its Administrator, officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers. 

(B) The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City of 
Kodiak, its Administrator, officers, officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the City of Kodiak, its Administrator, officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute to it. 

(C) The Contractor’s insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its 
Administrator, officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work 
performed by the Contractor or any subconsultant for the City. 

(2) Employer’s Liability 
The Contractor’s insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City of 
Kodiak, its Administrator, officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising 
from work performed by the Contractor or any subcontractor for the city of Kodiak. 

(3) All Insurance 
Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits 
except after 30 days prior written notice for nonpayment of premium or fraud on the part of 
the Contractor or 60 days prior written notice for any other reason by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, has been given to the City of Kodiak. Such notice shall be mailed by the 
Contractor’s insurer(s) to the attention of the City of Kodiak City Manager. 
 

d. Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than A-: VII. 

e. Verification of Coverage 
Contractor shall furnish the City of Kodiak with approved certificates of insurance and with certified 
copies of all endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause. The certificates and 
endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf. The certificates are to be on forms provided by the City of Kodiak, or 

153



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 5 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

which meet industry standard. The City of Kodiak reserves the right to require complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized 
officials, this Agreement in duplicate on the respective date indicated below. 
 
CITY OF KODIAK OPERATOR 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager Willard A. Feda 
 
ATTEST: WITNESS: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Debra Marlar, City Clerk Lon A. White, Harbormaster 
 

154



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 6 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 
Kodiak Shipyard 

Marine Travelift Operator 
 

1. Operate the Marine Travelift 600C Mobile Boat Hoist, Z9368, SN 3433-0409, the Travelift, per the 
operation and maintenance manual as required for lifting, moving, blocking and launching vessels. 

2. Be available, as scheduled by Harbormaster, and/or his designee to lift, move, block, launch and 
vessels. Vessels shall be transported to the wash down pad and to dry moorage as directed by the 
Harbormaster. 

3. The Contractor shall work closely with the Harbormaster to schedule all lifts, moves and launches. 
No vessel shall be lifted without the owner or designee agreeing (in writing) to yard policies and the 
Kodiak Shipyard’s best management practices. No vessel shall be launched without insuring that the 
vessel’s shipyard fees have been paid. 

4. Perform visual inspections of lift, straps and cables prior to, and after, each use per the Marine 
Travelift operation and maintenance manual. 

5. Agree to use the highest level of safety precautions at all times while operating the Travelift. 

6. Agree to use ground crew of no less than two additional City employees for every lift, launch or 
movement. City staff to be hired by Harbormaster or designee. Ground crew may be augmented with 
vessel crew members. 

7. The Contractor shall train at-least one City employee (as designated by the Harbormaster), to be the 
back-up lift operator. Training shall be hands-on and include actual boat lifts and launches under the 
direct supervision of the Contractor. A record of such training shall be kept. Once trained, the back-up 
operator will maintain his skills by lifting and/or launching at least one boat per quarter under the 
Contractor’s supervision and will operate the Travelift when the Contractor is on vacation, sick, or 
otherwise unavailable. 

8. Keep the straps and cables clean and free of debris that may cause premature deterioration. 

9. Check all fluid levels before use and maintain proper fuel levels and oil levels at all times. 

10. Report to Harbormaster or designee any and all defects or repairs or maintenance needs on the day 
such needs are identified. 

11. Non-routine maintenance expenses shall be approved, in advance by the Harbormaster. 

12. All lifts and launches shall not exceed the recommended loads as is specified by Marine Travelift. 

13. Loads must be properly distributed per the Travelift operator’s manual. 

14. All vessels being lifted for the first time must have a verifiable displacement provided to the operator. 
If displacement is unknown, and in the operators opinion may be projected to be within 15% of the 
limits of the machine, the operator shall require the vessel owner/operator to provide calculated 
displacement prior to lifting the vessel. 

15. Owner/operators of all vessels to be lifted must identify the known underwater fixtures, transducers, 
bearing and shaft locations and any other underwater appendages that my affect the strap placement. 
If such cannot be specifically identified ahead of time, inspection by a diver must be required prior to 
lifting such vessel. 

155



Marine Travelift Operator Agreement Page 7 of 7 
September 1, 2014, to August 31, 2016 
City Contract No. 216592 
 

16. Contractor shall record weight and other data on each vessel lifted. A photograph or notes regarding 
strap locations and underwater appendages, as well as displacement reading of Travelift gauges shall 
be recorded. Notes shall record each vessel’s load, including water, fuel, freight, etc. 

17. Contractor must attend any training deemed necessary by the Harbormaster for effective shipyard and 
Marine Travelift operations, including safety training, operator training and environmental awareness. 
The Contractor may bill the City for training time at the rate specified in paragraph 5of the contract. 
Travel expenses shall be paid by the operator. 

156



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

157



158



 
August 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. h. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

Request detailing the survey work format and deliverables needed for engineers to prepare design 
drawings. Staff met with Mark St Denny on Thursday August 14, 2014, and discussed at-length the 
scope of work and the City’s level of expectations regarding quality of work required for the project. 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1) Authorize the professional services contract with St. Denny Surveying Inc. for work to be 

performed on a lump sum basis in the amount of $38,500. Staff recommends this alternative, 
because it will save the City money by eliminating the mark up costs of having the design firm 
do the work. 

2) Do not authorize the contract. This alternative is not recommended, because of the risk that 
continued deterioration of this project area. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The current available funding for the Aleutian Homes Water and 
Sewer Project Phase VI in the FY2015 Budget is $372,424. This is adequate to award the professional 
services contract with St. Denny Surveying Inc. for design services for the project in the amount of 
$38,500.  

LEGAL: N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve the professional services contract 
with St. Denny Surveying Inc. for survey services of the Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement 
Phase VI project in the amount of $38,500, with funds coming from the Water Capital Improvement 
Project No. 15-03/7037. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: This next phase of the project is important and, like the other 
phases, will be expensive to complete. However, a locally owned survey company can help us facilitate 
the needed replacement by taking care of this pre-engineering first step. I suggest Council approve the 
professional services contract with St Denny as recommended by staff. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 Attachment A: St. Denny Proposal dated August 18, 2014 
 Attachment B: Survey Work Request-Aleutian Homes Phase VI 

 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to authorize a professional services contract with St. Denny Surveying Inc. to perform the 
survey work for the Aleutian Homes Phase VI Project in the amount of $38,500, with funds 
coming from Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Project, Phase IV, Project No. 15-03/7037 and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the documents for the City. 

159



Estimate
Date

8/18/2014

Estimate #

898

To:

St. Denny Surveying Inc
PO Box 388
Kodiak, AK 99615
(907) 481-3500

Project

Signature_____________________________________
Total

Description Qty Cost Total

KODIAK ALEUTIAN HOMES PHASE VI

 •RESEARCH
 •DEED PLOT
 •COMPUTATIONS
 •FIELD LOCATES – MONUMENTS
 •FIELD LOCATES – TOPOGRAPHY
 •FIELD LOCATES – UNDERGROUND

LOCATES
 •LOT LINE DETERMINATION
 •RIGHT OF WAY DETERMINATION
 •MAPPING
 •DELIVERABLES

1 38,500.00 38,500.00

DOES NOT INCLUDE
TITLE COMPANY FEES IF ANY
CITY OR BOROUGH FEES IF ANY
ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
EXPLORATION IF ANY

Page 1

160

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Estimate
Date

8/18/2014

Estimate #

898

To:

St. Denny Surveying Inc
PO Box 388
Kodiak, AK 99615
(907) 481-3500

Project

Signature_____________________________________
Total

Description Qty Cost Total

ESTIMATE DURATION OF PROJECT SIX
WEEKS
ESTIMATE IS VALID FOR 30 DAYS
City Sales Tax 7.00% 0.00

Page 2

$38,500.00

161



 

162

cpletnikoff
Text Box
Please provide a topographic survey for the area outlined in blue.  The survey is to include the following;1)  All catch basins, storm drain manholes, and sewer manholes, including inverts, approximate barrel diameter, and size of pipes along corridor.  Also locate nearest catch basins and manholes outside of the corridor at locations where underground storm and sewer mains exit the Birch Street intersections of Thorshiem Street, Pine Crescent Loop, Hemlock Street, Willow Street, Larch Street, and Mill Bay Road (indicated by red arrows). 2)  All signs, noting the information displayed on the sign.3)  All underground and overhead utilities. Including Low-Wire Heights. 4)  All pedestrian and street lighting, including junction boxes.5)  All driveways, walkways, fences, planters, and other landscaping to front of houses along corridor.6)  Road section shots every 50 feet including center line of road.7)  Building corners nearest to roadway.8) Water and sewer service locations in coordination with the City of Kodiak Public Works.9) Location and detail for all pedestrian ramps and ADA sidewalk ramps within the corridor. Deliverable Items:1) ASCII file with all topographic and control points. Use PNEZD (point, northing, easting, elevation, description) format.2) Include a point code dictionary.3) Copies of field notes.4) Horizontal and vertical control statements for project data. The statements should include the basis of coordinates, basis of bearings, and identify benchmarks used for the basis of vertical control for the project.5) Provide a minimum of three horizontal control points and two temporary bench marks.6) Provide two CAD drawings.     a. A Survey Control Sheet depicting horizontal and vertical control used for this project with a coordinate listing, legend and control statements. This drawing should include property, right-of-way lines and associated text.      b. Topography of existing conditions, including break lines, tin lines and contour lines of surface topography sufficient for 1-foot contour interval mapping.7) Provide XML file with points and surface data compatible with Civil 3D 2014.8) Provide a packet of source information that would include deeds, title reports, plats, or other information used.9) Use the Alaska Department of Transportation Central Region layering system for CAD drawings (Available on request).10) Provide signed Survey Control Sheet once final alignments are completed. (Alignments provided by the Contracting Agency).

cpletnikoff
Text Box
THORSHEIM ST

cpletnikoff
Polygonal Line

cpletnikoff
Text Box
PINECRESCENT LP

cpletnikoff
Text Box
HEMLOCK ST

cpletnikoff
Text Box
BIRCH ST

cpletnikoff
Text Box
MAPLE AVE

cpletnikoff
Text Box
LARCH ST

cpletnikoff
Text Box
BIRCH ST

cpletnikoff
Text Box
WILLOW ST

cpletnikoff
Text Box
MILL BAY ROAD

cpletnikoff
Text Box
POWELL AVE

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Text Box
NORTH

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Line

cpletnikoff
Text Box
SURVEY WORK REQUEST - ALEUTIAN HOMES PHASE VIKODIAK, AK

cpletnikoff
Text Box
Contact Information:          Mark Kozak, Public Works Director          2410 Mill Bay Road          City of Kodiak          Ph: (907) 486 - 8060          Fax: (907) 486 - 8066          mkozak@city.kodiak.ak.us

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

163



164



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. i. Memo Page 2 of 3 
 

 Average actual cost per sheet has typically varied from $4,500 to $6,000, which included base 
map, geotechnical investigation, and design submittals. This proposal is $4,000 per sheet for 
Phase VI. 

 Based on past Aleutian Homes projects, construction costs have ranged from $2,000 to $3,000 
per linear foot of roadway. With 1,300 feet of road for Phase VI, estimated construction cost 
using the upper end should be approximately $3.9 million. 

 Design cost as a percent of construction cost has varied between 3.5 percent and 6 percent.  
 Proposed Phase VI design fees are approximately 3 percent of the estimated construction costs. 

This is well below industry standard for this type of project. 
  
Authorization of this contract will allow the City to have the design completed and ready to submit to 
the State of Alaska for AMMG grant funding for construction in 2016. Having the design complete will 
increase our competitive scoring and place the City in a favorable position to receive grant funding.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Authorize the professional services contract with DOWL HKM for work to be performed on a 
lump sum basis in the amount of $114,071. Staff supports this alternative as the design is critical 
to beginning this phase of the Aleutian Homes project.  

2) Do not authorize the contract. This alternative is not recommended because of the risk that 
continued deterioration of Birch Street pavement will wear through to the base gravel and result 
in significant cost of repairs. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The current available funding for the Aleutian Homes Water and 
Sewer Project, Phase VI in the FY2015 Budget is $372,424. This is adequate to award the professional 
services contract with DOWL HKM for design services for the project in the amount of $114,071.  

LEGAL: N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize the professional services 
contract with DOWL HKM for design services of the Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement 
Phase VI, project in the amount of $114,071, with funds coming from the Water Capital Improvement 
Project No. 15-03/7037. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Replacement of water and sewer and improvements to storm 
drainage and sidewalks continue to be important to the residents and the City’s utilities. It is time to 
begin this next phase of the replacement project and it’s none too soon. Birch Street is deteriorating at a 
rapid rate, and repairs don’t hold due to the lack of an adequate roadbed. Therefore, I support staff’s 
recommendation and ask Council to authorize the design services contract to DOWL as outlined in the 
memo. 

165



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. i. Memo Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment A: DOWL HKM Proposal dated July 16, 2014 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to authorize a professional services contract with DOWL HKM for design services of the 
Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement Phase VI project in the amount of $114,071, 
with funds coming from the Water Capital Improvement Project No. 15-03/7037 and authorize 
the City Manager to execute the documents for the City. 

 

166



167

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

177



178



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. j. Memo Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Approve the lease renewal and pipeline easement with Island Air as identified in the attached 
lease and drawing (Attachment A), which is staff’s recommendation, because ongoing leases at 
the City’s airports are supported by Council and enhance revenues for the airports.  

2) Do not authorize the lease. This is not recommended, because the goal of the Trident Basin Float 
Plane Facility is to support stability and future growth of the facility. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The revenues from the lease will improve revenues in the Trident 
Basin Airport Enterprise Fund. 
 
LEGAL: The lease proposal was discussed with the City Attorney, and he drafted the attached lease in 
2011. No changes have been made, and this lease can be made by motion rather than ordinance because 
the term is for less than five years and the revenue is less than $30,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the renewal of the attached upland 
lease and fuel easement at Trident Basin to Island Air Service as described in the attach drawing and 
lease documents for an additional three years. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Island Air wishes to renew their lease of uplands and a fuel 
easement with the City at Trident Basin where they have been doing business since 2011.They have 
worked with staff and want to renew their agreement for another three years. I support staff’s 
recommendation. Island Air has been a good tenant, and I believe the terms of this agreement continue 
to benefit both the City and Island Air. Therefore, I recommend Council approve the lease and authorize 
me to complete the documents for the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Lease Agreement and location of current leased area site map 
Attachment B: Island Air email requesting renewal of the lease 

 
 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to authorize Trident Basin Fuel Facility and Pipeline Easement Agreement No. 216595 
with Redemption, Incorporated, d/b/a Island Air Service from September 1, 2014, through 
August 31, 2017, and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City. 
 

179



Redemption Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service Lease No. 216595 Page 1 of 6 
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2017 

LEASE AGREEMENT NO. 216595 
 

ISLAND AIR SERVICE FACILITY 
 

 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made this 1st day of September 2014, by and between the 
CITY OF KODIAK, an Alaska municipal corporation (“Lessor”), whose address is 710 Mill Bay 
Road, Kodiak, Alaska 99615, and REDEMPTION, INCORPORATED d/b/a Island Air Service 
(“Lessee”), whose address is P.O. Box 125, Kodiak, Alaska 99625, provides as follows: 
 
1. Premises.  

A. Upon the terms and conditions herein set forth and subject to the prompt payment 
and performance by Lessee of each and every sum and other obligation hereinafter referred to, 
the Lessor does hereby lease, let, and demise to the Lessee, and the Lessee does hereby lease 
from the Lessor that certain property located within the Kodiak Recording District, State of 
Alaska:  

(i) Of a parcel of land on the easterly shore of Near Island, in the City of 
Kodiak in the area known as Trident Basin. Containing approximately 2,539 square feet, 
identified as Lot 3 on Attachment “A,” and described as follows: 

Beginning at a monument marked TDB-121 Reset, from which a 
monument marked TDB-119 bears South 22° 41' 06" West of the point 
thence South 25° 27' 10" West 353.23 feet to the TRUE POINT of 
BEGINNING of the parcel to be described: 
Thence, South 25° 27' 08" West a distance of 72.55 feet; 
Thence, South 64° 32' 52" East a distance of 35.00 feet; 
Thence, North 25° 27' 08" East a distance of 72.55 feet; 
Thence, North 64° 32' 52" West a distance of 35.00 feet to the TRUE 
POINT of BEGINNING 
 
(ii) Of a parcel of land on the easterly shore of Near Island, in the City of 
Kodiak in the area known as Trident Basin. Containing approximately 100 square 
feet, identified as "proposed fuel tank area" on Attachment "A" and described as 
follows: 
Beginning at a monument marked TDB-121 Reset; thence South 23° 23' 
37'' West 318.54 feet to the TRUE POINT of BEGINNING of the parcel 
as described: 
Thence, South 25° 27' 08 "West a distance of 10.00 feet; 
Thence, South 64° 32' 52" East a distance of 10.00 feet; 
Thence, North 25° 27' 08" East a distance of 10.00 feet; 
Thence, North 64° 32' 52" West a distance of 10.00 feet to the TRUE POINT of 
BEGINNING. 

 
These leased premises are hereinafter referred to as the "Site" and are subject to easements, 
covenants, and restrictions of record. 
 

2. Term. This Lease shall continue in effect for a period of three years from September 1, 
2014, through August 31, 2017, provided, however, that either party shall have the right to 
cancel this Lease upon thirty (30) days written notice in advance of the date of such cancellation, 
such notice to be by certified mail sent to the usual mailing address of the party to be notified. 

180

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Redemption Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service Lease No. 216595 Page 2 of 6 
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2017 

 
3. Rental. Lessee agrees to pay as and for rent the sum of $8,436.84 annually in monthly 
installments which fall due on the first of each calendar month of the Lease term, and according 
to the following schedule for the remaining two years. 
    YEAR  RENTAL 
     2    102.5% of Year 1 
     3    105.0% of Year 1 
 
If a monthly installment is not paid by the fifth of the month in which it becomes due, a penalty 
of $30 will be added to the rental amount; and, in addition, simple interest shall accrue and be 
added to the rental amount at the rate of 12% per annum from the due date until paid. 
 
4. Conditions of Lease. The Site shall be used solely as an aviation facility.  
 
5. Availability of Service. Lessee shall operate its aviation facility at the Site as a first class 
business of high quality and public service.  
 
6. Parties Interested Herein. Nothing in this Lease, express or implied, is intended or shall 
be construed to give to any person, other than Lessor, any right, remedy or claim under or by 
reason of this Lease. 
 
7. Improvements. Lessor shall have the right to make additions, alterations, or 
improvements to the Site which will not impede Lessee’s access to or use of the Site. Lessee 
shall have the right to erect or construct a suitable building and/or associated structure(s) 
necessary for its aviation facility. Any improvements constructed by Lessee shall be consistent 
with the limited use of the Site authorized by this Lease and shall be constructed at Lessee’s 
expense. Upon termination of this Lease, such improvements shall become the property of 
Lessor or, at Lessee’s option, removed by Lessee at its sole expense. 
 
8. Maintenance. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Lessee shall, at all 
times and at its sole expense, keep and maintain the Site in good repair, and in neat, orderly, and 
sightly condition. Lessee shall not cause or permit any litter, debris, or refuse to be accumulated 
or stored upon the Site and shall promptly remove all such materials without cost to Lessor. 
 
9. Insurance/Indemnification. The Lessee shall not commence with use of the city’s land 
until the Lessee has obtained the insurance required under this contract. All coverage shall be 
with insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Alaska. All coverage 
shall be with carriers acceptable to the City of Kodiak. The required lines and limits of insurance 
are as follows: 
 A. General Liability Insurance: The Lessee shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this agreement, general liability insurance on an “occurrence basis” with limits of liability not 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and/or aggregate combined single limit, personal injury, 
bodily injury and property damage. 
 B. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance: The Lessee shall procure and maintain during the 
life of this agreement, motor vehicle liability insurance, including all applicable no fault 
coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single 
limit. 

181



Redemption Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service Lease No. 216595 Page 3 of 6 
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2017 

 C. Workers Compensation Insurance: The Lessee shall procure and maintain during the 
life of this contract, workers compensation insurance, including employer’s liability coverage, in 
accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Alaska. 
 D. Pollution Liability Insurance: The Lessee shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this contract, pollution liability insurance, on an “occurrence basis” with limits of liability not 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 E. Additional Insured: All insurance policies, as described above, shall include an 
endorsement stating the following shall be Additional Insured: The City of Kodiak, its elected 
and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities 
and board members, including employees and volunteers thereof. 
 This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insured, and not contributing with any 
other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insured, whether the other 
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 
 Cancellation Notice: All insurance policies, as described above, shall include an 
endorsement stating the following: “Sixty (60) days advance written notice of cancellation, non-
renewal, reduction and/or material change shall be sent to: City of Kodiak. 
 
10. Environmental.  

A. For purposes of this section: 
(i) “Environmental Requirement” shall mean any law, regulation, or legal 

requirement relating to health, safety or the environment, now in effect or hereinafter 
enacted, including without limitation the Comprehensive Environmental Response 
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 
the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Clean Water 
Act (CWA), the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and all similar state and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and guidance, now in existence or hereinafter enacted, as 
each such law, rule, or regulation may be amended from time to time. 

(ii) “Environmental Hazard” shall mean Hazardous Materials (as defined 
hereinafter), or the storage, handling, production, disposal, treatment, or release thereof. 

(iii) “Hazardous Material” shall mean 
(a) any hazardous waste, any extremely hazardous waste, or any 

restricted hazardous waste, or words of similar import, as defined in the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.) 

(b) any hazardous substances as defined in the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 USC §9601 et 
seq.) 

(c) any toxic substances as defined in the Toxic Substances Control 
Act (15 USC §2601 et seq.) 

(d) any pollutant as defined in the Clean Water Act (33 USC §1251 et 
seq.) 

(e) gasoline, petroleum, or other hydrocarbon products or by-products 
(f) asbestos 
(g) any other materials, substances, or wastes subject to environmental 

regulation under any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or 
ordinance now or hereafter in effect 
(iv) “Environmental Liabilities” shall mean any liability, penalties, fines, 

forfeitures, demands, damages, losses, claims, causes of action, suits, judgments, and 
costs and expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement, reasonable 

182



Redemption Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service Lease No. 216595 Page 4 of 6 
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2017 

attorneys’ fees, reasonable consultant fees, and reasonable expert fees), arising from or 
based on (I) environmental contamination or the threat of environmental contamination 
or (II) noncompliance, or violation of, any Environmental Requirement and shall include 
without limitation liability arising from 

(a) any governmental action, order, directive, administrative 
proceeding, or ruling 

(b) personal or bodily injuries (including death) or damages to any 
property (including loss of use) or natural resources 

(c) clean-up, remediation, investigation, monitoring, or other response 
action. 
(v) “Environmental Release” shall mean any release, spill, leak, discharge, 

injection, disposal, or emission of any Hazardous materials into the environment. 
B. At all times during the term of the Lease, Lessee shall conduct its activities at the 

Site, and shall ensure that any invitee of Lessee conducts its activities at the Site in strict 
compliance with all applicable Environmental Requirements. 

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless Lessor, Lessor’s successors and assigns, and Lessor’s present and future 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, (collectively “Lessor Indemnitees”) from and against 
any and all Environmental Liabilities which Lessor or any or all of the Lessor Indemnitees may 
hereafter suffer, incur, be responsible for, or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at 
the Site to the extent caused by or attributable to Lessee or Lessee’s activities, including any 
Environmental Hazard at the Site to the extent caused by or attributable to any invitee of Lessee 
or by the activities of any invitee of Lessee. 

D. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Lease. 
 
11. Utility Charges and Taxes. All utility charges shall be borne and paid for by Lessee, 
together with all personal or real property taxes or assessments that may be levied against the 
Lessee by reasons of its occupancy of the Site or its rights hereunder. 
 
12. Operation of Equipment. In installing, operating, or maintaining any equipment on the 
Site and in its general management of the Site, the Lessee will act in accordance with applicable 
laws and regulations and will not do, attempt, or permit any acts in connection with this Lease 
which could be construed as a violation of law. 
 
13. Condition of Site. The Lessee takes the Site in its present condition and the Lessor shall 
have no responsibility for its condition, or for any damage suffered by the Lessee or any other 
person due to such conditions. 
 
14. Assignment and Subleasing. Lessee may not sublease the premises, either in whole or in 
any portion, without first obtaining the approval of the City Council in writing. Lessee may not 
assign, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise encumber all or any portion of this Lease or the Site 
without first obtaining the approval of the City Council. Any assignment, pledge, or 
encumbrance approved by the Council shall be subject to all terms and provisions of this Lease. 
Any assignment, pledge, or encumbrance executed without the proper approval of the Council 
shall be void and of no force and effect. 
 
15. Default and Re-Entry. If Lessee fails to cure any default of the conditions of this Lease 
within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by Lessor, or in the event insolvency 
proceedings should be instituted by or against Lessee, then Lessor may terminate this Lease as of 

183



Redemption Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service Lease No. 216595 Page 5 of 6 
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2017 

such date and re-enter the Site and remove all property therefrom and Lessee shall remain liable 
for the payment of rental to the extent provided by law. 
 
16. Applicable Law. Lessee shall, at all times, in its use and occupancy of the premises and 
in the conduct of its operations thereon, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties executed this instrument the day and month first 
above written. 
 
LESSOR:  
CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 
Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager 

 LESSEE:  
REDEMPTION, INCORPORATED d/b/a 
Island Air Service 
 
Robert G. Stanford, President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
Debra L. Marlar, City Clerk  
 
Date  

 
Witness: 
 
 
  
 
 
Date  

 
  

184



Redemption Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service Lease No. 216595 Page 6 of 6 
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2017 

 

185



186

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

187



188



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. k., Council Memo Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Various units of the KPD fleet are evaluated by the Public Works Shop Supervisor (PWSS) 
annually. The PWSS performs an evaluation of vehicles using industry standards and criteria 
consistent with the City’s vehicle replacement policy and makes recommendations about which 
vehicles can remain in service and which should be removed from service. The evaluation 
includes comprehensive physical inspection of the body, vehicle electronics, engine, 
transmission, frame and suspension. The PWSS also evaluates the economic benefit of replacing 
a vehicle or replacing or repairing damage to a vehicle. 
 
The evaluation of Vehicle #15 (Animal Control), a 2003 Ford F150 special service vehicle with 
over 114,513 miles, revealed the vehicle was suffering from the combined effects of age, 
mileage, engine hours, and Kodiak’s harsh environment (see attached photos). This vehicle 
received regular and emergency maintenance throughout its service life. 
 
An evaluation conducted by the City PWMSS called for the replacement of this vehicle in 
FY2015 as a cost effective means for KPD to maintain a safe and mechanically reliable vehicle 
within its fleet. 
 
The State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT & PF), State 
Equipment Fleet maintains contracts with several light duty vehicle vendors in Alaska. Each 
vendor supplies pricing for basic vehicles with additional cost for added options. Cooperative 
purchasing is authorized on these contracts for qualified political subdivisions. The City of 
Kodiak is a qualified political subdivision and Kodiak City Code (KCC) 3.12.070 (c) permits 
attachment to this contract. 
 
Staff researched replacement options and recommends Council authorize the City to attach to the 
State of Alaska Light Duty Contract to purchase one current model year Ford AWD police utility 
for $26,229 through Kendall Ford. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Authorize the City to attach to the State of Alaska bid to purchase a vehicle. This is 
staff’s recommendation, as it will enable KPD to replace its Animal Control vehicle 
as planned. 

2) Do not authorize this transaction. This alternative is not recommended, because it is 
not consistent with the City’s Vehicle Replacement Policy, would impact Animal 
Control operations, and be contrary to the interest of the City. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There is sufficient funding in the FY2015 KPD budget to 
cover the purchase cost of this vehicle and attaching to the State of Alaska’s bid is in the City’s 
best interest. 

189



 
AUGUST 28, 2014 

Agenda Item V. k., Council Memo Page 3 of 3 
 

 
LEGAL: Kodiak City Code section 3.12.070(c) allows the City to purchase items with other 
units of government that have established the lowest responsible bidder and where the equipment 
meets or exceeds the City’s needs or specifications. This provision permits the City to attach to 
the State of Alaska’s bid and purchase the police vehicles through the State of Alaska contract.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff is recommending the Council authorize attachment to 
the State of Alaska contract to purchase this vehicle for $26,229, with funds coming from the 
FY2015 Kodiak Police Department Operational Budget, Animal Control Sub-Department, 
Machinery and Equipment Greater than $5000 line item. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Our vehicles, especially those at KPD, are heavily used. 
This replacement vehicle will serve as the Animal Control vehicle and be available for 
emergency response use as well. KPD vehicle #15 has over 114,000 miles on it and is in poor 
condition. It was identified for replacement in FY2015 and was included in the FY2015 budget 
presentation and final budget document. I support staff’s recommendation that we replace the old 
vehicle with a new Ford AWD utility vehicle and do so by attaching to the State’s bid with 
Kendall Ford. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: State of Alaska DOT contract pricing schedule  
Attachment B: CIP nomination forms for replacement of KPD Animal Control vehicle, 
  including photos form replacement evaluation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to authorize the City to attach to the State of Alaska Light Duty Contract with 
Kendall Ford to purchase one current model year Ford all wheel drive police utility 
vehicle for $26,229, per Kodiak City Code 3.12.070(c), with funds coming from the 
FY2015 Kodiak Police Department Operation Budget, Animal Control Sub-Department 
Machinery and Equipment Greater than $5000 line item and authorize the City Manager 
to execute the purchasing documents. 

 

190



  Attachment A 

Price Schedule 

Kendall Ford SOA Contract for AWD Police Utility Vehicle 

 

Quantity  Description                      Price      Total 

 

1 Ford All Wheel Drive Police Utility                  $26,047.00 

Vehicle, White Fuel Economy 

       2          Spot Lamp, Driver Only (Package 51Y)   $      182.00 

 

          Total:   $ 26,229.00  

     

 

191



192

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



193



194



195



196



197



198


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of the July 24, 2014, Regular Council Meeting
	PERSONS TO BE HEARD
	a.	Proclamation: Recognizing Kodiak’s Seafood Processing Workers
	Attachment A

	b.	Proclamation: Suicide Prevention Week
	Attachment B


	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	a.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1320, Authorizing a Lease of Property Adjacent to Pier II With Petro Star, Inc. d/b/a North Pacific Fuel
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	b.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance, No. 1321, Authorizing the Grant to Kodiak Electric Association, Inc, of an Approximately 5,000 Square Foot Easement on a Portion of Alaska State Land Survey No. 89-10, USS 2539 TR A Located in the Vicinity of Gibson Cove; and a 40-Foot Wide by Approximately 4,997 Foot-Long Easement Traversing Pillar Mountain Across City Properties Described as USS 2538a TR B and USS 3945; for a Flywheel System and Power Line to Support the Operation of a New Crane at Pier III
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F

	c. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1322, Enacting Kodiak City Code 2.08.065, Assistant Deputy City Manager—Appointment, Powers and Duties; Amending Chapters 2, 4 and 10 of the City Personnel Rules and Regulations; Amending the Definitions in the City Personnel Rules and Regulations; and Adopting New Schedules I And II to the Personnel Rules and Regulations; to Provide for the Appointment, Duties, and Compensation of an Assistant Deputy City Manager
	Attachment A


	NEW BUSINESS
	a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1323, Authorizing a Lease Renewal of a Communication Site in U.S. Survey 3945 on Pillar Mountain to (CCATT, LLC) (Pillar No. 11)
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	b.	First Reading, Ordinance No. 1324, Amending Kodiak City Code 2.08.025, Compensation of Councilmembers, and Kodiak City Code 2.08.034, Compensation Of Mayor, to Increase Monthly Compensation for Councilmembers From $200 to $400, and to Increase Monthly Compensation for the Mayor From $250 to $500
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	c.	First Reading, Ordinance, No. 1325, Authorizing an Amendment to the Lease Between the City of Kodiak and NOAA for Office and Warehouse Space on Pier II
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D

	d.	Resolution No. 2014–30, Authorizing and Directing the Chief of Police to Place Signs Prohibiting Parking on the Northwest Side of Mission Road Between Erskine Avenue and 12th Avenue
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	e.	Resolution No. 2014–31, Appointing Members to the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	f.	Resolution No. 2014–32, Opposing Section 1021 of the 2012 National Defense Authorization Act
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F 

	g.	Authorization of a Technical Services Contract With Willard A. Feda to Operate the Marine Travelift
	Attachment A

	h.	Authorization of a Professional Services Contract for Survey of Aleutian Homes Phase VI, Project No. 15-03/7037
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	i.	Authorization of a Professional Services Contract for Design of Aleutian Homes Phase VI, Project No. 15-03/7037
	Attachment A

	j.	Authorization of a Trident Basin Fuel Facility and Pipeline Easement Agreement With Redemption, Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	k.	Authorization to Purchase Vehicle for Kodiak Police Department
	Attachment A
	Attachment B





